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Annual activity report of Bulgaria Air AD
For the year 2018

i. General information

At company Bulgarma A ALY 1s a jomt stock company registered in 2000 m the Trade Register under
UIC 000633828, Unnl 14 February 2007 the sole owner of the Company 1s the Republic of Bulgana,
represented by the Mimstry of Transport, Informanon Technologies and Commumnications  The
Company 1s rcgtstcrcd and dOﬂllCLlLd in Softa, Slatina NMuniapality, Sofia Aurport, 1 Brussels Blvd.

On 14 Februarv 2007 the Company became privatized. Bulgarian M\rways Group EAD becomes the
owner of the share caputal. One of the shares of the Company is owned by the Bulgartan state.

Bulgaria Air A 15 the navonal carrier of the Republic ot Bulgaria. The main activities of the Company
comprise providing domestie and international aviapoon services, transportt of passengers, freight and
airmail under scheduled mternational thghts as well as charter fights and other related actrvities

Bulgaria \ir ADD 15 an aviation company, tts mam acavities being domesuc and mternauonal aviatuon
transportation of passengers, freight and airmai, using 1ts own or leased atreraft, arrcraft rental services
/ncluding wet and drv lease/, awrcraft technical support and engineening services, nckets reservations
and ucket sales, production-technical acovines and intermediary services, personnel tramning and
certtfication, domesoc and foreign trade

\s at 31 December 2018 and as of the date of preparanon of these financial statements the Company’s
Board of Directors conststs of the followmg members

. Plamen Tsvetkov Atanasov - Chairman of the Board;

. Hrsto Todorov Todorov - Member of the Board and CEQ;

. Yanko Valkov Georgev - Member of the Board and CEQ,

. Valenon Alexandrov Bozhkov - Member of the Board,

. Bulgartan Auwavs Group FAD - Member of the Board, represented by Hrsto Todorev Todorov
. NMariyva Theva Viadimirova.

In 2018 there were no changes in the structure and members of the Board of directoes of Bulgaria \ir
AD and 1t 1s represented by two exceutive directors - Hrsto Todorov Todorov and Yanko Valkow
Greorgev, as well as by its procurator — Bastra Tsvetkova MNarnkova

The shate capital of the Company 1s BGN 120 000 000, comprsing 120 000 ordimary sharcs, entitled to
voung rights, with par value of BGN 1 000 per share Al shares are entidded to receive dividends and
liquidation share and represent one voting nght at the General Meenng of Shareholders The share capital
15 fully pard by Bulgaran Virways Group EAD.

Bulgaria \ir holds an operatng license of a Community atr carrier and an Mr Operator Ceruficare ssued
by the Directorate General "Crvil Avianon Adminsstration™ supervised by the Munserv of Transport,
Information Technology and Communtcauons.

Bulgaria \ir [SC 15 2 member of the Internavonal Jr Tiansport Assoctation (IVTA), which repieseats,
manages and operates the aviation industry in the world Bulgarta \ir holds a ceruficate for aviation safery
- [OSA {INT N Operatonal Safery Audit), wluch confirms that the Airine complies with international
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safery and quality standards The safery cernificate 15 part of TOSA program (TATA), which amms ©
provide and mamntam 2 high standard of safery and quality among airlines It 1s given after a thorough
audit of the arlines by an inecrnational team of spectalists in varous fields A total of 424 arlines
worldwitde have such a certificate. Ir cernfies the successtul work of the Company 1 eight key areas:
General level of organizaton and management

Flight operations

Mamntenance

Operanonal actrviry

Ground handhng

Freght activity

Cabin service and

AN N NN NN

Sceurty level.

18 Structute, viganizatio, trade network and partners

The strucrure of the arline 15 as follows
- Board of Directors
- Iixecutsve Directors and Procurator
- Tlghts Operauons Department
- Mamnrenance Department
- Ground Handlng and Safety and Secunty Departiment
- Intemal Flights Opelanons Department
- Commercial Department
- Finance Deparrment
- General Adminisiranon and Human Resources Department
- Safety and Quality NManagement Svstem Department
- Controlling Deparument
- leegal and Insurance Deparmment

In 2018, the Company opcrates with a total of 407 staff, divided 1into categories, as follows:

Staff Category Number of employecs

2018 2017
Cabin crew 110 123
Commanders and second prlots 38 80
Licensed rechmeal staff 13 16
Cther rechnical sraff I -
Trickenng specralists 35 37
Oithiet L'mplcl\'cc:‘ 150 149
Total 407 416

Bulgara Air AT has haghly qualified pilots (commmanders and second pilots) who have the necessary
experience and skills The average amount of flying hours for each pilot s over 5,000 flight hours, with

some of them reaching over 20,000 flight hours

The matn objective of the arrline 15 to offer 1ts customers the highest quality services on board using new,

safe and comfortble aireratt and to continuously unprove 1ts product
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Tn 2018 Bulgaria Aw A\ operates using the following tvpes of aircrafe - Arrbus A 320, Aubus A 319 and
Fambracr 190,

The athne conducts regular mternattonal flights
from Sofia to 22 major citics m Lurope and the
Addle Fase, regular domestic flights to Varna and

Burgas; charter flights on request to over 100

destnations

The atthne services of the Company can be reached

through a direct online/ web-based sales channel or through offices in London, Moscow, Sofia, Varna,

Burgas and Shumen

Together with 1ts partners, Bulgana J\ir offers 1ts chients the opportunity to travel to over 400 cities in
Furope, Asia, \frica and North America Bulgaria Air strives to be the preferred atrdine for mavel to and

from Bulgara

The partnerships of Bulgara (At are based on cooperation with other airlines and are refated w the
sipnung of commerctal contracts The main contract 1s the Mulnlateral Interline Traffic \greement
(MITY), the signing of which means mutual recogmunion of the tickets benween the partners By ranfying
AMITAL Bulgana \ir has the opportunity to offer 1ts clicnts the use of thew partners' flights on a reciprocal
basis under certain condintons. Such s the cooperavon with Lufthansa, Turkish Aubnes, LOT, Sibenan
Aitlines. Tn addinon to MITA, Bulgana Air also has different bilateral interline agreements, e g with

Amencap Arrhnes and many other.

Greater opportunities for expandig sales volumes to mncrease the number of destnations offered at a
given pomt are achieved by signing a special prorate agreement (SPA) between the interline partners
This 15 one of the major commercial contracts that allows customers to use the tlights of nwo or more
atthines on the basis of specially negotiated prices and esumares berween partners This type of contract
ts usually bilatcral, as Bulgarta Awr has signed with more than 20 wmterline partners but also has a
mululateral contract with \ir France / KLM / Delta, which 1s preferred by the customers of Bulgarna

\ir oot oalv for oversens flights, but also for mside of Europe

The mest commonly used i
bdateral  SPAs  are  Viagin

Atdanue,  Amencan  \arlines, @

Brussels \rlines, Aliealia, Theria, o

9

Brivsh  Sirways, TAP, \ustrian

g O @

Mrhines,  Finnar,  [cetandar,
Acroflot, Croatna Aehines, (Qatar. Py @ &

i
H

Anothet kind of major trading @ &
contract 1s the Codeshare h
Partnershup I this case, the ) Oo
operating carrier provides an

opportumty for its partner, called markeung carner, to place ats flight code on the arrline that carnes

out the shipment This allows the customers of Bulgana Air (o use more thghts to a destmation under a
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sumplified reservanon procedure, both on their own flights and on the flights of the partner on the
route. The matn Codeshare partners arc \ar France, KLM, Alitalia, Aeroflot, Egean, Czech Mrines,

Iberta, Atr Serbia, Tarom and also this year's Codeshare contract with A Traly.

FHI. Development of the actvity and the posidon of Bulgaria A AD
I Overview of Compant’s acovicy
In 2018 there were no changes 1 the actrvity of Bulgania \ir ADD.

As at 31 December 2018 the Company does not have own arrcrafts and operates with the following
arrcrafts under an operanng lease:
o Awbus, Type A 320 = 3 arplances with the following registration imuals. LZ-FBC, T.7-FBID, 1.7-
FBE,
*  Awbus, Type A 319 = 2 arplanes with the following registranon imuals: LZ-FBB, LZ-FB\;
*  Embraer, Type E 190 — 4 aplanes with the following regtstration munals. 1.7Z-501 | LZ-VAR,
LZ-BUR, LZ-PLO

The main acovities of atrhine Bulgana \ar are aumed at

v Carry out regular internatonal flights to more than 20 destinanons m Europe and the Middle
East including capitals and other major cities 1n Russta, Germany, the UK, Switzerland, Spam,
ltalv, Fiance, \ustna, Belgmum, Greece, Czech Republie, the Netherlands, Tsrael, Tebanon and
Cyprus:

v Regular domesnc thghts (rom Sofia, Varna and Burgas,

v' Transport of cargo and mai - the anline works with all registered logistic compantes on the
Bulgarian market and with selected partners on the foreign markets;

¥ T'ransport of tourtsts on request by four operators to different destnatons in Furope, the
AMiddle East and North Africa There are also ad-hoc charters - single charter flights for
corporate and private customers;

v Lease of airplanes — manly "wet" and "dry" areraft are offered to other ailines in Furope and
the MNaddle Fast

2. Revenue

The strueture of revenues, generated from flights, operated duning the vear, 15 as follows:

2018 2017 Change Change %
Revenues BGN’000 BGN’000 BGN000 %o
Internanonal scheduled flights 150 358 152 748 {2390y (2)%a
International charter fhelis 72832 63 894 8 928 14%,
Domestic scheduled flights 14 197 12720 1477 1204
Revenues fiom uckets and fees
with expired validity 3 352 3 485 (5 133) (60
Revenues from tssutng tickers 1 483 I 430 53 4%

Total revenues from flights 242 212 239 277 2935 1%
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The structure of flight reveaues has been mamtamed dunng the analyzed penod, with the highest
percentage  of  revenues

bemng  armbutable to the sy

mternational scheduled
flights — 624, followed by
the  revenues,  generated

[E
507

from the mternational a0
charter flights - 30%0 and
from domespc  scheduled
thghts — 6% During the
period a decrease n the 10%

relatve share of revenues et e

from regular 1nternanonal rtoeaticnal aternational Domesug Revenuts Revenies
ﬂjgh(s i favour of charter wheduled charter Hirhts scheduled  ram expred  Gomissuing
flihes evenues Y flignity thgnts tic ket and b fts

foes
observable ee

& 018 2017

In the comparanve pertod

for 2017 1n the accompanying financial statements, part of the revenues from the performed flights are
from nckets and fees with exprred validiy BGN 8 483 thousand and Income from ncket issuance fees
of BGN 1 430 thousand Tn the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for 2017,
this revenue was presented witlun Other Income. The change was made as a result of the coming mto
effeet of TFRS 13 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, the subsequent analyses of the narare of
revenues and guidance published by IATA

In 2018 there 15 an merease 1n the revenues from performed tlights by BGN 2 935 thousand compared
1o the previous vear Although there has been a neghgible reducton n revenue from internanonal regular
fhglhts, management's etforts to mcrease efbciency have led to unmproved performanece mdicators
Changes have been made to reduce the number of flights and the capacity offered on certain destnanons.
As a result, the profirability ratios of passenger kilometre and revenue per available seat kilomerre (R ASK)
i the acuvity increased by 2%% and 0.5%%, respectvely, compared to the base year.
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Revenue earned on mternational scheduled rourtes 1s as follows:
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‘The matn hines that generate tevenue for the internanonal scheduled fhights are to Amsterdam, Pans.
Brussels, London, Madnd and Moscow Tn 2018 there was an increase or at least a retention of the share
of most destinanons on regular internauonal flights, with the exceprion of the line to Berlhin

S¥en,

S DR

B ger] Ryt

Charter flights

o

(it

Hp

In 2018 an increase of
the revenues from
charter flights was
achieved by 14% or
BGN 8 928 thousand.
Over 75% of the flights
performed on thas
acuvity  were  mainly
carried out with an
arrplane Atrbus A320. Of
these, the highest share is
revenue from charter
flights to Russia, which
accounted for 51% of
the proceeds of tlus

activity - BGN 36 867 thousand .\ lngh percentage (18°5) of operating revenues atc thights to Israel with
BGXN 12 830 thousand, followed by the charters to Poland with 86 parncipation and Turkey with 5%
participation. Other countries with a lower contribunion to revenue are Greece, Morocco, Spain, Egypt

and other Furopean countries.
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Domestc scheduled flights generate revenuc on routes Sofia - Varna, Sofia - Varna - Burgas and Sofia —
Burgas. Company
revenues  for 2018
from this  actvity
stgnificant
increase of  BGN
1477 thousand (129,
merease) Revenue per
availabie seat
kilomertre RASK)

increase with 1.23%0

Domestic flights

achieved

83%

. comparnson to 2017
bR - - 39, % Domestic fhights
: RS revenues are allocated

as follows:

A summary of the natual indicators related to the core business of the J\irhine 15 as follows:

Indicator 2018 2017 Change
Number of flights, incl 5995 6 047 (52)
Scheduled flighes 4 841 5009 (168)
Charter thyghts 1154 1038 116
Number of passengers carried, mncl. 1267 276 1244 569 22707
Scheduled flighe 954 726 968 155 (13429
Charter flights 312550 276414 36 136
Block hours, mncl. 28 940 30 981 2041
Scheduled tlights 21125 22532 1407
Charter flights 50657 5174 483
Leasing 2158 3275 1117
Average load factor for scheduled flights 76% 75% 1%

‘T'he decrease in the number of flights carrted out in 2018 by 52 flights compared to 2017, offsetung the
smaller numbert of regular flights with a larger charter schedule Regular flights are in dependent on the
market restructunng and the strong presence of low-cost carriers This ampose combming regular flights
from different destinations 1 order to use the fleet capacity and preserve the passenger flow in the
respective destinanons as well as decreasing the operating loss mcurred within the least bustest wmter
months.

3. Other meame
Orther income of Bulgaria . \ir in 2018 amounted to BGIN 47 871 thousand (2017 BGN 38 368 thousand).

Pxcluding onc-off revenues, the most significant share (35"0) m the strucrure of other income was
mncome from wet lease of foreign airlines to the amount of BGN 8 706 thousand. Compared to the base
year 2017, they marked a decrease of BGN 3 834 thousand at the expense of the inereased chareer

program for the perod.
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2018 2017
BGIN'000 BGN’000
Leasc of airplanes 8 706 12 544
IFunes and penaloes 5 085 4353
Revenues from sale of goods and matenals 1318 1 655
Advertisement revenues 679 034
Commission mcome 672 686
Advsisory, technical, telecommunication and transport services i11 196
Other 2981 amz
Other rents 922 824
Orther income 27 397 14 464
47 871 38 368
1. Expenses
The operauny expenses structure of Bulgana Air AD 15 provided below-
Expenses 2018 2017 Change Change
BGIN000 BGN“000 BGN‘G00 %
[ired services expenses 171475 184 202 (12727) (6 91%)
Cost of matenals 79 251 66 204 12987 19 60%
Fmplovee benetits expenses 14 781 14 450 331 229"
Deprecianon and amoruzation 5 9y 6021 (51) (0 85%)
exXpenses
Other expenses 20 211 9 839 a2 105.42%
Cost of goods sold 793 879 (86) (9.78%%)
Total expenses 292 481 281 655 10 826 3.84%

In 2018 operating expenses mereased by 3.84" ¢ compared to 2017 Changes m the type of expenses are

as tollows

- In the cost of external services a large reducton i absolute value of the rental and techmnical
support costs 15 observed The decrease m these costs was due to the measures taken by the

management Lo renegotiate the monthly rentals of the Embraer 190 atrcraft. On Scptcmbcr

2018, an average monthly reduction of over 10° o was achieved
- Cost of matenals dunng the reporung year mereased by 19 6%.. This 15 mamly due to an
micrease in aviaton fuel costs by 23% compared to 2017 The mamn reason for this 1s the
upward fuel price imncrease 1 2018 (by 31 7%0) compared to a USD/ BGN exchange rate
decrease of 4%, Aviation fuel costs account for the highest share of matenal costs (90%4)
- The increasc in other expenses 1 2018 15 105% compatred to the same 11 2017, Thus 15 mainly

attributable to the recogruzed costs of expected credit losses of the Company's financial assets
as a result of the comung into effect of the new IRS 9 dated st of January 2018. Other types

of other expenditures (nusstons, clatms, greenhouse gas supplies and other) show a

msignificant change of BGN 789 thousand
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3. Financial posttion of the Company

In 2018 Bulgaria A AD suffered a loss of BGN 3 510 thousand (2017 - loss of BGN 6 562
thousand) The main factars thar continue to adversely affect the activity of the arrline dunng the peniod

considered are:

- The contmung influence of competition
and the increasing capacity of Ryan \ir, f Loss by years

which from the end of 2016 started to

compete with almaost all routes of Bulgana &

Arr from Sofia CLE XKis LT pinit}
- Dunng the reporung penod, fuel prices RS -

grew faster (by 3294) compared to the

decrease m UST)/ BGN exchange rate (by -1

4" ﬂ)

The chatt shows that despite the unfavourable conditions i which the airine operates, the tendeney to
improve the performance over the past few years contmues, Compared to the previous 2017, the loss

decrease almost by half
6. Fmancial analvsis

Mam bnancial indicators for the activity of Bulgana Awr AD are calculated on the basis of the followmng
summarized financal mformation-

Indicators 2018 2017 Change
BGN ‘000 BGN 000 BGN ‘000 %
Non-current assets 118 569 122 150 (3 581) (3%0)
Current assets, mcluding 139 510 151 077 (11 567) (8%0)
Inventory, mcluding plane spare parts 5 824 5743 81 %6
Investments 1 shares 18 000 18 0LO - -
Short-term recervables 100 575 130 093 (11518) (10%%)
Cash and cash cquivalents 15111 15241 (1303 (1%0)
Total Assets 258 079 273 227 (15 148) (6%4)
Equity 120 447 127 509 (7 062) (6%)
Financial result (loss) for the period (3 510) (6 562) 3052 (47%0)
T.ong-tertm labilities 9317 34105 (24 788) (73%)
Short-term lhabelinies 128 315 111 613 16702 15%0
Total Liabilities 137 632 145 718 (8 086) (6%)
Indicators 2018 2017 Change
BGN ‘000 BGN 000 BGN “000 %o
Total revenue 296 115 284 198 11 017 484
Operating tevenue 290 188 277 640 12 542 5%
Total expenses 299 625 290 760 8 865 3%

Operanng expenses 202 482 281 655 10 827 Yo
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Ratios, characterizing the financial position of Bulgana Air AD have been calculated as follows:

Financial Indicators 2018 2017
Profitability Ratios

Profitabiity of sales ratio (0.012) (0.024)
Effectiveness ratios

Cost effecuveness rauo 0.0883 0.9774
Revenue effectivencss ratio 1.0119 10231
Liguidity ratios

Current ratuo 1.0872 1.3536
Quuck ratio 1.0419 1.3021
Immediate hqudity catio 0.1178 0.1366
Net Working Capital (BG™N ‘000) 11195 39 464
Solvency ratios

Solveney rauo 0466~ 0466~
Debt ravo 0.5333 (5333
T.oad facton for Tnr regular flights 2o 76.02 T1.96
Load factor for Dom 'hghts %6 “a.67 68 92
Recervables Furnovetr 21.62 21.39
Dars sales Outstanding 17 17

The above brief analvsis shows that as of 31+ December 2018 the profitability of the Aurdine 1s sull
neganve, duce to the reported loss

The indicators for general and quick hiquedity show that the Company 1s able to mect ws current habilities.
iy, Busiess telated oisks, Risk manggement,
Risk management objectives and policies

‘The Company 1s exposed t vanous risks m relation to fmancial instruments. The mam types of nsks are
market risk, credir risk and hquedity sk

The Company’s nsk management 1s coordinated at its headguarters, 1 close co-operation with the Board
of directors and focuses on acovely secunng the Company's short to medium-term cash flows by
minimizing the exposure ro financial markets

The Company does not actively engage 1n the trading of financial assets for speculatve purposes nor
does 1t write options

The Company s exposed to market risk through 1ts wse of financal msrruments and spectfically to
currency sk, mnrerest rate sk and ceirain other price nisks, which result from both its operating and
mvestng acovites

Currency risk

Maost of the Company’s transactuons awe carrted out in Bulganan leva (BGN) and EUR. Exposures to
cutreney exchange rates artse from the Company's overseas sales and purchases, which are primanly
denomimated m UsS-Dollars and Bransh Pounds.

The Company has short-term trade lubiines, related party habilities and other habthities denomimated n
U's-Dollars, Brinsh Pounds, Russian Rubles and Swiss Francs which are related to the operating activity
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of the Company (landing fees, over-flight fees, lease payments under the operating lease contracts for
atreraft, arcraft engines repair works payvables, spare parts payables and others).

The Company has shore-term trade recervables and other recervables denominated 1 US-Dollars and
Brnsh Pounds, which are related to ticket sales from foreign representatives and ochers, These
recesvables are classified as loans and recervables.

To reduce currency nsk, the Company monutors the cash flows that are not i Bulganan leva. The
Compaay applies separate nisk management procedures for short-term (up to 6 months) cash flows 1n
forcign currency Where the amounts to be paid and recerved in a specific currency are expected o largely
offset one another, no further hedging activiry 1s underraken. Te 15 also possible to invest 1 forward
contracts that are shore-term, within | month

Interest rate risk

The mnterest rate risk 1s the ask of changes 1 the amount of the interest-beannyg Ioans of the Company
due o changes n the market tnterest rates.

Company's policy 1s 1o minunice interest rate nsk on long-term financing

A loans of the Company have a fixed 1nterest rate due to which the Company 1s not exposed to

significant interest rate nsk.

Credit risk

Credir 115k 13 the sk that counterparty fals to discharge an obhigaton to the Company The Company s
exposed 1o this nsk from recavables to customers.

The Company contmuously monttors defaults of customers and other counterparues, wdentified etther
mdividually or by group, and incorporate this information mnto ws credut nisk controls. Where available at
reasonable cost, external credit racngs and reports on customers and other counterparttes are obtamed
and used The Company's policy 1s to deal only with creditworthy counterparties. In additton, large part
of the sales revenue has been recetved as advance pavments thus reducing the credit nisk, and the
mdvidual chients do not have the opportunry to use the service, before paving therr uckets.

At the end of each reporting peniod an tmpairment testis performed on all loans granted by the Company
as well as all recervables of the Company. As at 31 December 2018 the results from the analyss led to
reporting of imparment losses of recervables at the amount of BGN 9 498 thousand (2017 15
thousand). The credit sk for cash and cash equivalents 15 constdered negligble, since the counterparues
are reputable banks with hugh quality

Liquidity risk

The Company manages 1ts hqudiy needs by carefully monitorning 1its cash-outflows m the day-to-day
bustness actvites Liquidity needs are momrored 1n various nme bands, on a day-to-day and week-to-
week basts, as well as on the basis of a roling 30-day projection. Long-term hqwdity needs for a 180-day
and a 360-day lockour pertod are dentfied monthly.

The Company maintamns 1 current bank accounts to meer s hquidity requurements for up to 30-day
penods.

Estmanng and managing the hqudity nisk the Company reports expected cash tlows from financial
nstruments, espectally the cash on hand and the trade recervables. The cash on hand and the rade
recervables do not exceed significanuly the current need from the eash ourflow.
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Other price risks

The Company 15 exposed to other price nsk 1n relaton to the supply of avianon fuel, the price of which
15 derermined and influenced by factors outside the control of the Company, whose trend 1s determined
globally. \n eventual increase 1 the price of kerosene would have a negative impact on the profitabiiicy
of the airhne and cash outflows

\s at 31 December 2018, the Company does not hold publicly tradable securines as a result of which it
15 exposed to the Company.

V. Information about the members of the Board of Direciors

1. [n 2018, the remunerations accrued for the Company’s Board of Directors members are short-
term and are summanized as (ollows

Short-term remuneration

- Wages

- social SCCUTTY eXpenses

2018 2017
BGN‘000 BGN“000
(197) (197)
(1) (1)
(207) (207)

2 Parmership of the members of the Board of Directors in other compantes, ownership of morc

than 23% of the share-capual of other companies as well as their participation m the
management of ather companies as procurators, managers or members of the Board

As at 31 December 2018 the members of the Board of Directors (BD) have the following parucipaton

mn ()[llt‘l‘ C(JITIP?LIIICS

Members of the Board

Company

Type of participation

[Trsta Todorov Todorov

Bulgana \ir Mantenance EAD

\iember of the BID and CEQ

Nuance BG AD

Member of the BD and CEO

Bulgarian \irways Group E AD

Member of the BD

Airport Services Bulgana FAD

Member of the BID and CEO

Swissport Bulgana AD

Aember of the BD and CEO

Mirport Consulung EQOD

MManager

Aarline Hemus A EAD

AMember of BD and CEO

Tiburland EQOD

Manager and Sole owner

National Association of children summer
camps

Member of BID

Plamen Trvetkov
Atanasov

Bulganan Airways Group EAD

Member of the BID and CEQ

\ithne Flemus Air EAD

Member of BDD

Aurport Services Bulgana EAD

Member of the BID

Bulgaria Atr Mantenance LAD

Charrman of the BID

Mativa Theva Viadimuova

Bulganan Airways Group EAD

Chairman of the BID

Atrline Flemus Air FLAD

Member of BD

Bulgana Air Maintenance EAD

Member of the BD and CEQ

(1] and Gas Fxploration and Producuon AD

Procurator

Arport Services Bulgana TLAD

Member of the B and CEQO

Nuance BG D

Member of the BD

Aquamar FOQOD

Manager and Sole owner

Sinyakovo projeci estate EQOOD

Manager

Energoprockt Unlines OO

Manager
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Members of the Board Company Type of participation
\irline Hemus Air EAD Member of the BD and CEO
Yankeo Vulkov Georgiev Elod1 O0OD Partner (25" ownerslup)
Bulganan \rlines Associztion (AB.Y) Member of the BID
Valenun Mexandroy JR Invest AD Aember of the BD
Bozhkov

The members of the Board do not own any shares or bonds of the Company, netther any right to acqure
such The members of the Board of Directors or thetr affihates do not have contracts concluded during
the year with the Company that go beyond 1rs normal acuvity or marenally deviare from the market
condinons within the meanmg of Art 240 b 1n Commercal Act.

Vi, Strategic goals

The nusston of Bulgara A AD as a natonal carnier 15 related to the provision of high qualty an

Passenger services, cargo and mal services 1na large number of destunavons around the world that

D

guarantee reltabtliry, comfort and safety.
Strategic goals of Bulgaria Air AD are:

- Mammiming an optimal price-qualtty ratio of the service;

- Achieving an airplane park with a capacaty corresponding to the market miche 1 which the
airtline operates:

- Increasmy the market share in the aviation service 1n the counoy and the region;

- Streagthening the kev role of the atrline 1n aviation service activines,

- Creaton of a strong and compeutive nattonal arrline able to withstand the compenuve pressure

of foreign airhnes m a fully liberalized market.

In 2018 the management of Bulgana \ir AD conunued to impletnent a program to optnmize 1ts activiey ,
anmming to achieve higher effictency and profirability’ The auhne owns a modern aplane park New
software products are used that lead to more cfficient company management, mtroducing a new mobile
applicaton for ticketing and online check-mn. The avianon technology of the Airbus conecern that1s used
by the Arlime, allows for greater efficiency and generally improves the service provided Regarding the
Bulgarta Aur flect, the goal 15 to impose the usage of only two types of airplanes - Airbus and Embracr

Despue the contimued downward trend in low-cost carriers such as Wizz Awr, Easylet and Ryanair, in
2018 a management strategy 1s 1n place to expand the business at an accelerated pace and to enter new
markets by expanding the network of fhghts and attracting new customers through new contracts with
leading earriers an the market, enabling the airline wo offer advantageous offers for direct and transfer
flights depending on the spectficity of each parocular market. Tn this respect, as carly as 2018 | Bulgaria

Aur started 1ts operation on a new regular destination Sofia-Odessa-Sofia.

The cfforts of the Company are atimed at continuous improvement of the offered services and products.
Works with Amadeus Reservaton System, a modern online sales platform through the adine’s websire,

and crew plannimg and support software for Lufthansa Technik

The Company™s operatons are highly dependent on the conditions of the tnternational aviaton market,

which direetly affeces the trade load and the frequency of flights.
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Under these conditions in 2018, Bulgana Air AT made efforts to opumize 1ts operatons As a result of
the actions taken by the management of the Company, at the date of preparation of this reporr, the

following facts and circuinstances are present

- The arline operates and operates a modern airplane;
- Improved efficiency m busmess management;
- Significantly improved quality of the oftered transport service;

- Opumured costs
The straregic goals of the aline remain focused on:

v \lake the most of the opportunities for discovertng new desunations and increasing the market
share,

¥ Mawtenance of a new, modern awrcraft flect,

v Alamtain flexibie pricing policy;

v Mantamning hughly qualified staff,

The arrline has a tendeney to merease the efficieney of 1ts operations i providing its aviation services
The enterprise has idenutied a set of measures that can lead to addinenal opportumunes to opumize fived

costs and micrease revenue i the short term
VL Future development of Bulgania Aie AD

In 2019, the airhne will continue to optimuze 1ts activites in order to achieve its strategic goals

With the development of the airline's operatng environment, the Company focuscs on modern channels
and means of selling arrline tickets, 10 this regard 1t 15 expected: commssionmg a new, onhine, ticket sales
channel avatlable through a mobile device that will allows passengers to quickly and conventently check-
in before their fhight through the molbile device and wluch channel will nonfy airhine customers of all
upcomung promotions and attractive offers

Tn 2019, the arhine contmued the process of negotiating a number of new code-share agreements with
leading airhines on the Lluropean market 1n order to expand the network of destinattions that the attline
would offer 1ts customets:

v Code-share agreement for cooperation with A Iralv. Witlun the framework of this agreement,
flights will be operared jointly on the Softa Milano route and from Sofia to Varna and Burgas
and jout flights through Midan to Catana, Naples, Olbia, Cagliari, Palermo Moreover, thanks
to this cooperanon agreement, Bulgana e wall sell all the transatlannce routes of JAur Italy - New
York, MNiami, San Francisco, Los Angeles and Toronto.

¥ From the beginning of the summer season of 2019, the agreement with Cyprus Awrways 1s
expucted to be finalized. Within the framework of this agreement, which is already defined, the
routes Sofia-Larnaca, the Sofia-Varna and Sofia-Burgas routes, as well as flights from Soha to
Prague and Zurich and Larnaka to Betrur and Tel Aviv.

v Anagreement was signed with ur Baloe, which allows both carriers o sell thetr flights from
Sotia o and from Riga, Tallinn and Vilnmus,

¥\ "code share cooperation to Ukraine with Ukrainian arine Windrose 15 being prepared, jountly
operating to and from Ky and Odessa.

v A large-seale "code share” deal wath a German carner on attractive routes such as Male, Cancun,
Kuala Lumpur, Calgary, Tlalifax, Vancouver and Cape Town

v Agreement with Adra Mrways 1s expeered to be signed, as a result of which a flight from Sofia
to Ljubljana wil be jounty performed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the shareholders of
Bulgaria Air AD
1 Bruksel Boulevard, Sofia

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Bulgana Air AD (the Company), which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018 and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies

In aur opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and far view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 Decemnber 2018 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the EU and Bulganan
legislation.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further descnbed In the “Auditor's Responsibilites for the Audit of the Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the international
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants {(IESBA Code), together
with the ethical requirements of Bulganan Independent Financial Audit Act, and we have fulfilled our other
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtatned 18
sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for cur opinion

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management 1s responsible for the other iInformation. The other information comprises the annual management
report, prepared In accordance with Buigarian Accountancy Act, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon

Our opimion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility I1s
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 1s matenally inconsistent
with the financial statements or whether our knowledge obtained 1n the audit may indicate that there 1s a
materal misstatement or otherwise the other information appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there 1s a matenal misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the EU and Bulgarian legislation, and
for such internal control as management determmes 1s necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management 1s responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
cantinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liqudate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to da so.

Those charged with governance are responstble for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from maternal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditer's report that includes our
opimon. Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance, but 1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with |SAs and Bulganan independent Financial Audit Act will always detect a matenal
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can anse from fraud ar erfror and are considered matenal if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of our audit iIn accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit We also

- identify and assess the nsks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit pracedures responsive to those nsks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinien The nsk of not detecting a matenal
misstatement resulting from fraud 1s higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control,

- obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opimon on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control,

- evaluate the appropnateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

— conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audt ewvidence obtained, whether a matenal uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, If such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

—  evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
tming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In addition to our responsibilities for reporting under ISAs, described above in section “Information Other than
the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon’, regarding annual management report, we have
performed the additional procedures contained in the Guidelines of the professional organisation of certified
public accountants and registered auditors in Bulgana - Institute of Certified Public Accountants (ICPA) The
procedures on the existence, form and contents of the ather information have been carned out in order to state
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whether the othet nformation includes the elements and disclosures 1t accordance with Chapter Seven of
Bulgonan Accountancy Act

Statement Pursuant to Article 37, Paragraph (6] of Bulgarian Accountancy Act

Based on the procedures performed. we descnbe the outcome of sur work:
(a) the information in the management report 15 consisien! with the financial statements for the same
reporting penaod:
(b} the management report is preparad «n accordance with the applicable legal requirements; and
(ch as a result of the acquired knowiedge and understanding of the activibes of the Company and the
snvircnment 0 which 1l operates, we have found no cases of matenal misrepreseniation in the
managemant eport

Grant Thornton Ltd.

Audit firm T
Mariy Apostolov & P
Managing partner - \W,L"

Registered auditor/re/sponsib!e for the audit

O
15 March 2019 3
Buigaria. Sofia /
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Statement of financial position as at 31 December

(continued;)
Note 31 December 31 December

Fqmne and habilities 2018 2017
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Veonminhated bose HH3 212 RONELY
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Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income tor the
vear ended 31 December
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Notes to the financial statements

1 General iformanon

Bulgarta Air AID (Bulgaria \r AD, the Company) 1s the natonal carrter of the Republic of Bulgana Tts
core business 15 to provide aviaton services within the country and abroad, carrying passengers, cargo
and mail on wternational scheduled and chattered flights and other related activivies

The Company 1s registered 1 2000 vear having an UTC 000633828, The Company 1s registered and
domuciled m Sotia, Slatina mumcipality, 1 Brussels Blvd.

On |4 February 2007 the Company became privanzed Bulgaran Awways Group EAD becomes the
owner of the share caputal, one of the shares 15 owned by the Republic of Bulgana.

The Company has one-tier management svstem, conststing of the (General Meenng of Sharcholders and
the Board of Directors. As of 31 December 2016 and as of the date of preparatton of these financial
statements Bulgana e ADD 1s managed and represented by both executrve directors: Mr Hrsto Todorov
Todorov and Mr Yanko Valkov Georgiev, as well as the procurator Mrs. Bistra Tsvetkova Mannkova,
only together

\s of 31 December 2018 the Company’s Board of Directors consist of the following members:
® Plamen Tsvetkov Atanasov - charrman of the Board,
® [Iristo Todorov Toderov — member of the Board and execurnve director,
¢ Yanko Valkov (GGeorgrev - member of the Board and execunve director,
® Valenun Alexandrov Bojkov — member of the Board,
¢ Bulganan \irwavs Group FAD— member of the Board,

¢ Manva [heva Viadimirova — member of the Board.

The ulumare owner of the Company ts Invest Capital AD, registered 1n the Republic of Bulgaria, whose
equity instruments are 1ot quoted on the Bulganan Stock Exchange, Sofia. The Company 15 included 1n
the consolidated financial statements of Chimimpore A2, registered 1n the Republic of Bulgaria, whose
equity mnstruments ate quoted on the Bulganan Stock Exchange, Sofia

In regards o 1ts core business actvines Bulgana \ir ADD 1s a member of the Internanonal Awr Transport
Assocranon - LV TATA 15 engaged with representative, management and maintenance functons of
the wortld atrline indusery.

Tn 2018 Bulgara \ir AD operates with the following types of areraft:
- 3 Nurbus V3240,
- 2 ‘arbus A 319
- 4 Limbraer 190,

As at 31 December 2018 the Company does not have own airplanes.

As of 31 December 2018 Bulgara _\ur A has 407 emiployees and the average number of employees for
the vear 15 431

In 201 8 there were no changes in the nature and the volumne of the actovities of Bulgana i ADD
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2 Basis for the preparation of the inancial statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared 1n accordance with International Financial
Repoinng Standards (TIFRY) as 1ssued by the International Accounung Standards Board (IASB) and
approved by the Furopean Umion (EU). The term “IFRS, as adopted by the U has the meaning of
paragraph 1, subparagraph 8 of the Additional provisions of Bulganan \ccountaney \ct, which s
International Accounnng Standards (T \3) adopted m accordance with Regulation (EC) 160672002 of
the Furopean Parliament and of the Council,

The financial statements are presented in Bulgarian leva (BGX), which s also the functnonal currency of
the Company. All amounts are presented in thousand Bulgarian leva (BGN'000) (including comparative
mtormanon for 2017} unless otherwse stated.

These financial statements are separate financial statements. The Company has used the exemption from
consohdanon in accordance wich [FRS 10 “Consoldated [inanctal Statements”, paragraph 4 The ennty
which prepares consohdared financial statements for public use that comply wath Inrernanonal Financal
Reporong Standards 1s Chinumporr ATD The address where these consolidated financial statements are
obramable 1s 2 Stefan Karadzha Str., Sofia, Bulgana.

The Company reported aloss of BGN 3 310 thousand for the peniod, a neganve cash flow from operaung
acoivinies amountng o BGN 8 221 thousand and accumulated loss as at 31 December 2018 at the amount
of BGXN 63 212 thousand  FHowever, the Company's management considets thar the financial statements
are prepared 1n accordance with the going concern principle The reason for this 1s the continued support
of the sole owner of the capual, which in 2017 was expressed 1 the provision of addmonal cash
contributions amounting to BGN 61 414 thousand wluch led to Company's equity unprovement and
brlngmg it mrto the lcgzlll'_\' rcqmred thresholds In addltluﬂ, MANAgement has prep:lred forecasts for the
future development of the Company and has taken a number of measures that have led to positive results.

As a resule, at the date of the financial statements, the management of Bulgaria Air AD has made an
assessment of the Company's abtlity to conunue 1ts business as a gomng concern based on the available
information for the foreseeable future. \fter a review of the Company's operations, the Board of
Drrecrors expects that it has sufficient financial resources to contnue 1ts operatonal acuviies mn the near
future and continues to apply the going concern principle to the preparaton of the financial statements,
the Company will be able 1o continuie 1ts operations and to repay 1ts payables without sclling assets and
withour undergoing substannal changes i 1ts business.

3 Changes in accounung policics

31 New and resised standards that are effective for annual pericds beginning on ot after |
Januare 2018

The Company has adopted the following new mteegpretations, revistons and amendments to 1'RS 1ssued
by the International Vecounting Standards Board, which are relevant to and effective for the Company's
finanetal statements for the annual period begmming 1 January 2018 and have no significant impact on
the Company’s results or financial posttion.

IFRS 9 “Financial instruments” effective from 1 January 2018, adopted by the EU

[FRS 9 “Financial instruments” replaces TAS 39 “Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement”,
Tt makes major changes to the previous gumdance on the classification and measurement of financial
assets and introduces an ‘expected credit loss’ model for the impairment of financial assets

When adopung TFRE 9, the Company has applied transiional relief and opted not to restare prior penods.
Ditferences ansing from the adoption of TFRS 9 in relavon to classification, measurement, and
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impatement are recognised m accumulated loss The adoption of TFRS 9 has impacted the following
areas

¢ Classtfication and measurement of the Company’s financal assets

AManagement holds most financial assets to collect the associated cash flows The recetvables (trade and
other recervables and related patty recervables) continue to be accounted for at amortized cost The
invesiment, classified previously as an mvestment available-for-sale, 18 now measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Measurement category Effect of application of IFRS 9
Vi . Carrying
Financial Financial Carrying ExpCLthi amount
amount 31 . credit
assets assets Reclassif 1
) j December L loss/
according to according to 2017 ication Remeasur January
TAS 39 IFRS 9 IAS 39 em;ant 2018
IFRS 9
Noan-current financial asscts
Current bnancial \vailable fos . .
Aesir A 'y Ol 18 000 18 000 - 18 000
ASNSCT sale

Relared parey
l_l].[nh ﬂ.l](_{

loans and Amortized cost 200320 - - 20 320
recen ables
recevables

Larans and Loans and mortsed cost 10873 . y 10873
recemvables recenvables
Oyther tancinl 1 Garns and Amortired cost -0 575 ) (3 559) 6 056
recety ables recevables

119 768 18 000 (3 559) 116 209

e [mpatrment of financial assets applymg the expected credit loss

The expected credir loss model affects the Company’s financial assets For trade recervables and related
party recervables the Company applies a simplified model of recogmsing expected credit loss, as these
ttems do not have a significant financing component A sigaificane part of the trade recervable are related
o the sales of airline uckers, which are usually settled within two week via the LAT.A internatonal
payment systern BSP. They represent 62%0 of total sales. Onhine sales of airline tickets, which represent
229 of toral sales are usually collected within 5 days. The remawming sales are realized through own sales
by offices and agents m the country and abroad and their amounts are collected witlun 15 days after the
sale date

Taking into account the nature and speafics of Company’s activity, including the conditions uirder which
the Company’s tiade receivables are settled as well as based on 1ts histoncal expenence, the Company
has analysed the age structure, collectability and repavment terms of trade recetvables \s a result, the
expected credit losses were wentified for an amount msyguficant to the gross amount of recervables
Thetefore, they are not recognived 1o the Company’s financial statements as of 1 January 2018 and no
cffect of applying TITRS 9 was recogruzed as of the same date.

In respect to the related party recervables, the Company has made estimate, that there 1s no significant
credit risk exposure, refernng o the possibility there may be sertled with the sole owner’s support Asa
resule of the analysis 1t was coneluded that the expected eredit losses of related party recervables are also
tnsignificanc and therefore not recognized

In 1espect to the approach for other financial recetvables, the Company makes individual estumare when
formimg the methodology for caleulaung and accounung for the impairment losses, depending on the
counterparty, the collateral, the conditions, the methods of disbursement and repayment For the purpose
of determiming expected credie losses a diseount rate 15 applied that reflects the wmung effect of the
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recervables. As a result of the performed calculations and 1n observance of the circumsrances surroundmg
the collectabiliy of the amounts, as at 1 January 2018 an eftect of apphcation of IFRS 9 at the amount
of BGN 3 559 thousand was identified.

The accumulated loss from impatrment of recervables as at 31 December 2017 reconcile to the opening
balance of the accumulated impaimment as at 1 fanuary 2018, as follows

Impairment of

receivables

TBGN

At 31 December 2017 ¢ — calculated under 1AS 39 T84

\mounts recogntsed 1n retuned carnings 3559
As at 1 January 2018 — calculated under IFRS 9 4343

. MMeasurement of (_‘(_]ult_\' mvesunents at cost less mpairment

As of the date of transinon to IFRS 9 the Company has made the wrrevocable choice to determine s
equury investmenss in a foreygn company, which 1t intends to hold after 1 January 2018 as a financial
wstrument at fair value through other comprehensive mcome. Based on an assessment of the investee 1t
was concluded that the cost of the mvesunent as at 31 December 2017 represents 1ts fair value. The
assessment 18 made based on the nec assets of the investee, taking 1nto account other indicators, which
could affect  the ciedit nsk of the mnstrument — the financal condition of the 1ssuer, the economic
cavironment 10 which the 1ssuer operates and other

IFRS “Revenue from Contracts with Customers™ effective from 1 January 2018, adopted by the
EU

TFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Cuseomers”™ and the related Clanficanions to TFRS 15 “Revenue
tfrom Conrtracts with Customers” (heremafier referred to as IFRS 15) replace LAS 18 “Revenue”, TAS 11
“Construcuon Contracts” and several revenue-related Interpretanons The new Standard has been
applied retrospectively without restatement, with the cumulative effect of 1mtial application recogmsed
as an adjustment to the opening balance of rcramned earmings at 1 January 2018. In accordance with the

transtiton gudance, TFRS 15 has only been applied to contraces that are incomplete as at 1 January 2018

In the analysis of the applicanon of TFRE, the Company has idenufied the following areas with a possible
etfeer

- Costs for concluding a contract, relating to commussions

- Loyalty/bonus /discount programs that are part of the Company’s usual business pracrice

- Dasclosure

II'RS 15 does not result n a matenal change in the manner, amount and aming of Company’s revenue
recognition and measurement. The analvsis of Traffic revenue and Other income including the estmates
of performance obligations allocation showed that ticket 1ssuance charges and income from tickets and
taxes with expired validity are related to the fhights obligatton and therefore should be classified as Traffic
revenue. For the purpose of achieving comparabiity and consistent presentatton, which give more
relevant information for the effect of transactions and other events or condiions on the Company’s
financial poson, wcome from tckets and taxes with exprred vabidity and ocket wssuance charges for
2017 are presented i a ditferent way compared to the financial statement for 2017,

[n the Statement of profir or loss and other comprehenstve wcome for 2017 this revenue was presented
withm Other mcome Tn the current finaneral statements the following amounts are reclassified from
Orther income to Traffic revenue:
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- Income trom nckets and taxes with expired vahdiy— BGN 8 485 thousand,
- Ticket tssuance charges — BGN 1 430 thousand

The change concerns only the way of which the elements of the Statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for 2017 ate presented and does not relate to thetr measurement

Contracts with multiple performance obligations

The Company has ongomg customer loyalty programs where customers can collect bonus points (award
credits), which can be exchanged for free tickets for flights of Bulgaria Air AD, can get free transportation
of additional luggage, flight i business class with a ticket for economy class, vouchers for the busmess
lounge at the airport and other meentves for loval customers. Those contracts comprise of variety of
performance obliganons and under TFRS 15 the Company must evaluate the separability of the promised
goods or services based on the following critena:

* the customer benefits from the 1tem etther on 1ts own or together with other readily avatlable
resources, and
® 1t ‘separatel idenufiable’ (1 e the Company does not provide a significant service mtegrating,
modifving o1 customising 1t
Whde this represents sigmificant new gusdance, the implementaton of this new gudance did not have a
sgnificant smpace on the ammg or amount of revenue recogmsed by the Company 1n any vear.
Followwing the analysis and caleulanons made, the Company has concluded that these areas has no cffect
on the mutal applicatton of TFRS 15

IFRIC 22 “Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration” effective from
1 January 2018, adopted by the EU

The Tnterpretanon covers foretgn currency transaciions when an cnty recognises a non-monerary assct
or non-monetary liabiity ansing trom the payment ot receipt of advance consideranon before the enoy
recognuses the relared asser, expense or icome. The date of the transacnon, for the purpose of
detenmuning the exchange rate, 1s the date of imtial recognition of the non-monetary prepayment asset
ot deferred income labilite Tf there arc multiple payments or receipts 1n advance, a date of transaction
1s established for each paviment or receipt

The tollowing new standards, amendments and interpretations to IFRS 1ssued by the International

Accounting Standards Board, which are relevant to and effecuve for the Company's financial statements

for the annual pertod beginning 1 January 2018 but do not have a sigmficant smpact on the Company’s

tinancial results or posinon:

e TFR> 2 “Share Based Payments” (amended) effecave from 1 January 2018, adopted by the EU

e RS 4 “Tnsurance contracts” {amended) cffective from 1 January 2018, adopted by the FU

* TAS5 40 Tnvestment property” (amended) - Transfers of Investment Property effectrve from 1 January
2018, adopted by the EL

* Aanual Tmprovements to TFRSs 2014-2016 effectve from 1 January 2018, adopted by the EL.

3.2 Swandacds, anemdiments and imerpretations o existing standarcds that are not vet
effective and have nor been adopted carly by the Campany

At the date of authonsatuon of these financial statements, certamn new standards, amendments and
interpretattons o exisung standards have been tssued, but are not effective or adopted by the EU for the
financral vear beginmng on 1 January 2018 and have not been adopted earh by the Company
Information on those expected to be relevant to the Company’s financial statements 15 provided below

s TFRS 16 “Leases”™ effective from 1 January 2019, adopted by the EU
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Tlus standard replaces the current gmdance in TAS 17 “Leases” and 1s a far-reaching change 1n acconnnng
by lessees in particular.

Under TAS 17, lessces were requured to make a distinction berween a finance lease (on balance sheet) and
an operanng lease (off balance shect) TFRS 16 now requires lessees to recogmze a lease Lability reflectng
future lease payments and a ‘nght-of-use-asset’ for virtually all lease contracts The 1ASB has meluded an
optional exemption for certain short-tenn leases and leases of low-value asscts; however, this exemption
can only be applicd by lessces.

l'or ICSS(N‘S, the ﬂCCOul‘l[lng s[a)'s almost the samc

Under IFRS 16, a contract 1s, or contamns, a lease 1of the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an dentfied asset for 2 penod of ume 1n exchange for consideration.

In order to decermine the ympact, the Compaay 1s i the process of:

. performmg a full review of all agreements to assess whether any addiuonal contraces will now
become a lease under TFRS 1675 new defimuon;
- deaiding wluch transitional provision to adopt: etther full retrospecuve applicauon or parual

retrospective applicanon (which means comparatives do not need to be restated). The parual applicanon
method also provides optional relict from reassessing whether contracts in place are, or contain, a lease,
as well as other rehefs Dieading which of these pracucal expedients to adopt 15 important as they are
one-off choices.

. assessing thenr curent disclosures for finance leases and operatung leases as these are likely to
toum the basis of the amaunts to be capitalised and become right-of-use assets The Company esumates
that approximarely BGN 133 thouwsand are short-term contracts payments which will be recognised on
a stragght-line basts as an cxpense n profit or loss

. derermining which opuonal accounting sumplificattons apply to their lease portfolio and if they
are gomg to use these exemptions;

. assessing the addinonal disclosures that will be requured

s ar the reporung date, the Company has non-cancellable operatng lease commiurments of BGN
163 170 thousand

The expected effects of applying the standard can be presented as follows

Right-of-use assets 01.01.2019
BGN 000

Right-of-use asscrs, recogmzed as.
- Property, plant and equipment 2135
- Mrcrafts 140 071
142 206

Lease liabilides
Aging analvsis of lease habihites

-Upto 1 vear 39 134
- 1 to 3 years 111 757
- More than 5 vears 12279
Towl amount of undiscounted lease liabilites 163 170
Diascount (20 964)
Total amount of presenc value of lease liabilioes 142 206
Current portion 39134
Non-curtent portion 103 072
Total amount of present +alue of lease labtlities 142 2006

The following new standards, amendments and mterpretanions to exisang standards, which have also
been wsued, but are not ver effecnne, are not expected to have a material mpact on the Company’s
financial scatements
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A hst of the changes in the standards 1s provided below

3.3

IFRS 9 “Imancial Instruments” {amended) — Prepayment features with negative compensation,
effecrive from 1 January 2019, adopted by the EU

IFRS 14 “Regulatory deferral accounts™ effecuve from 1 January 2016, not yer adopted by the
FU

IFRS 17 “Tnsurance Contracts” effective from 1 January 2021, not yer adopted by the LU

TAS 19 “Employee benefus” (amended) — Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement - effectrve
trom 1 Januarv 2019, not vet adopted by the EU

TAS 28 “Tnvestments 1n associates and jomnt venrures” (amended) — Long-term mterests m
associares and pomt ventures ctfecuve from 1 January 2019, not vet adopted by the EU

IFRIC 23 “Uncertamnty over mcome tax treatments” cffective from 1 January 2019, not vet
adopred by the LU

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 ceffective from 1 january 2019, not yet adopted by
the I

I ffect of change in accounting pohicy

\s disclosed w note 31, TFRS 9 and TFRS 15 are applied withour restatement of comparatve
informagon. Reclassificattons and adpusoments artsing from these changes i the Company’s accounting
policy are not reflected 1n the statement of finaneial posiion as at 31 December 2017 and are recognized

i the statement of financtal postaon as at 1 Jaauary 2018 The following table presents the adjusonents
recognised for each individual 1tem as a result of the mmtial applicaton of IFRS 9

Statement of financial position

31 December 2017 IFRS 9 1 January 2018
BGN ‘000 BGN “000 BGN “000
Restated
Non-current assets 122 150 - 122150
Current asscs
Aireraft spare parts 5138 - 5138
Invenrorics (VR - 605
Shorr-rerm Bnancial assets 18 000 - L& 000
Relared party recenables 20452 - 20 452
ltade recervables 11 359 - 11359
Orher recervables 30282 (3 539 76723
Cashand eash cquvalents 15 241 - 15 241
Current assets 151 077 (3 559 147 518
Total assets 273 227 (3 559) 269 668
Equity
shate capital 120 D00 - 120 000
Resers s 63 632 - 63 652
Vccuwmnudated o 156 143) (3559 (59 702
Total equity 127 509 (3559 123 950
Liabilities
~Non-carrent abihoes 34 105 - 34105
Current habilines 111613 - 111013
Total liabilities 145 718 - 145 718

Total cquity and habilitics 273 227 (3 559) 269 668
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The mutal application of [FRS 15 netther does result mn adjustments 1n the financial result for 2017, nor
in the clements of the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017

The total cffect as at {1 January 2018 over Company’s accumulated loss 1s presented as follows:

Accumulated loss

BGN ‘000
Closing balance as at 31 December 2017 - TAS 39 (56 143)
Adjustments from the application of IFRS 9
Increase of impaument losses (3 559
Opening balance as at 1 January 2018 — IFRS 9 (59 702)
4 surmmary of accounting policy

4.1 Overall consideratons
The sigmificant accountny policies that have been used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarnred below

The fiancaal statements have been prepared using the measurement bases specified by IFRS for cach
rvpe of asset, labihty, income and expense The measurement bases are more fully desenbed in the
accounting policies below

[t should be noted that accounting csumates and assumpuons are used for the preparation of the financal
statcments Aithough these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of current events and
actions, actual results may ulumarcely differ from those estimates

4.2 Presentation of frmancial statements
The tinancial statements are presented n accordance wath IAS 1 “Presentation of Finanaial Sraternents”

The Company has elected to present the statement of profir or loss and other comprehensive income as
a single statement

One comparatve period 15 presented by the Company in the Financial Statement because 1in 2018 there
are no cases where the Company.

(1) apphies an accountung policy retrospectively,
() makes a retrospective restatement of wems i ats finaneal statements or

() reclassefies financial statements” positons
4.3 Invesuncnis i sabsidianes

Substdiaries are firms under the control of the Company. The Company controls an investee when it 1
exposed, or has rghts, (6 vanable rerurns from 1ts mvolvement with the investee and has the abiity to
affect those rerurns through 1t power over the investee. In the financial statements of the Company
nvestment i subsidiaries ts accounted at cost of the nvesument,

The Company recognizes a dindend from a subsidiary in profit or loss nats separate financaal statements
when 1ts nght 1o recerve the dividend 15 established,
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4.4 fuvestrments in jome veniures

Joint ventute 15 a contractual agreement 1 which the parues which have joint control over the
enterprise have the nghts on the assets and the pavables in respect of the company’s liabilities. The
Company recognizes its shares i a joint venture by the cost method and 10 relation to it recognires

- Its assets, including 1ts share 1n all assets held jointy,

- Trs habihities, including its share m all habilities held jointly;

- Its revenue from the sale of its share of the finished goods of the jomntly controlled operations

- Tts share of revenues from the sale of fimshed goods of the jomntly controlled operations,

- Tts costs, including its share i all costs incurred jondy.

4.5 Foreign curtency wranslaton

I'oreign currency transacuons are tramslated into the funcuonal currency, using the exchange rates
prevaling at the dates of the transacoons (spot exchange rate as published by the Bulgarian Natonal
Bank) Foreign exchange gamns and losses resulung from the settlement of such transactions and from
the re-measurement of monctary items at year-end exchange rates are tecogmzed in profit or loss.

Non-monetary iems measured at histoncal cost are translated using the exchange rates at the date of the
transaction (not retranslated) Non-monerary 1tems measured at fair value are wanslated using the
exchange rates at the date when far value was determined.

1.6 Revenrue

The Company analysed 1ts main contracts by tvpe of revenue — traffic revenue and other revenue. The
man effects of the application of the new standard are related to the disclosure of mformation, required
by II'R3 15 Changes m the manner, amount and trmng of recogmuon of revenue are not wennfied

Accountng poliey, applicable undl 31 December 2017

Revenue anses both from rendering of services, sale of goods and other Revenue generated from the
core services 15 presented in note 23
Revenue 1s measured by reference to the farr value of consideration recerved or receivable by the
Company for goods supplied and services provided, excluding VAT, rebates and trade discounts.
Revenue is recognized, provided all of the following conditions are satisfied:
e the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably;
s 1t 15 probable that the cconotme benefits associated with the transacuon will flow to the
Company,
¢ the costs meurred or 1o be tncurred can be measured reltably; and
# when the criteria for cach of the Company's different activities have been met. These activity-
spectfic recognition criterta are based on the goods or services provided to the customer and the
contract conditions 1n cach case, and ate descubed below.
Rendening of services

Services rendered by the Company include transport of passengers, cargo, baggage and mail by own and
leascd awceraft, leasmg of arcraft, technical arcraft maintenance and engineering, ucket sale and
reservacions of nickets, techmical and mrermediary production acuvites, preparacon and qualificaton of
personnel, domestic and toreign trade.

Revenue generated from opetating leases of mvestment properties of the Company 15 recognized on a
stratght-hne basts over the period of the lease

Revenue generated from ucket sale 1s recogmzed when the passengers have actually been transported
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When the ucket sale includes loyalty customers’ incentives, the consideranon recesved from the customer
15 allocated berween the components of the arrangement using fair values. Revemue of such sales is
recogmzed when the client exchanges the mcentives for services provided by the Company.

Sale of goads

Sale of goods comprnses the sale of petrfumery, cosmercs, jewellery and other goods (duty — free exchange
tradinyg goods) on the board of airplanes and i retail store. Revenue is recognized when the Company
has transferred to rthe buyer the significant nsks and rewards of ownershup of the poods supplied.
Sigruficant nsks and rewards are generally considered to be transferred to the buyer when the customer
has taken undisputed delivery of the goods.

Accounting policy, applicable untl 31 January 2018,
Recognition and measurement of customer contracts revenue

To determime whether to recognise revenue, the Company follows a 5-step process
Tdentifving the contract with a customer:

- Idennfying the performance obhganons,

. Deternmuming the ransacnon price;

\Mlocaring the ransacnon price

. Recognusing revenue when/as performance oblhigaton(s) are sansfied.

U 10—

Revenue from contracts with customers 15 recogmzed when the control of the goods and /or servaces
promised in the contract are transferred to the client in an amount, which reflects the remuneraton the
Company expects to be enntled to 1 exchange for those goods or services.

The control s transferred to the chient when (or as) the performance obligation s fulfilled, under che
contract by mansferring the promused product or service to the client An asset {good or service) 15
transferred when (or as) the chient has control over this asset

Any promuse o transfer good and/or services which are separately identifiable (on thesr own and 1n the
context of the contract) 18 reported as a performance obligation.

The Company recogntses revenue for every separate performance obhigation at the level of an indrvidual
contract with a client by analysing the tpe, term and conditions for each parucular contract. For
contracts with sinular charactenstics, revenues are recognised on a portfolio basts only if thewr grouping
m a portfolio would not have a sigmficantly different effect on the financial statements.

Lsually Company’s contraces with clients consist of one performance oblgaton.

When a transactton is pattly within the scope of IFRS 15 and 1s partly within the scope of other standards
the Company applics the separatton and/or tnitial measurement requirements set out 1 those standards,
it the other standards specify how to separate and/or iniually measure one or more parts of the contract.
The Company excludes the cost of the portion {or porttons) of the contract that was mtially measured
in accordance with the other standards from the transacoon price and applies the requirements of IFRS
£ 1o allocare the remaining cost of the transaction price.

Tt the other standards do not speaify how to separate and/or imtially measure on or more portions of
the contiact, the Company applies TFRS 15 tor the separaton and/or 1ninial measurement of the portion
(or poruons) of the contract.

Measurement
Revenue 1s measuted based on the transaction price speatfied for cach contract.

When determumng the transactian price the Company takes mto account the condiions of the contract
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and 1ts usual business practices

The transaction prce 15 the amount of the consideratton, which the Company expects to be entitled to
m exchange for the transfer of the prormsed goods or services, except for the amounts collected on
behalf of thirds parties (e g value added tax). The fee promused m the contract with the chient may include
fixed amounts, vartable amounts or both

When (or as) the performance obligation 1 fulfilled the Company recognises as revenue the transaction
cost (which excludes estunates of vanable consideration contaning himitations) that is attnbutable to the
performance obhgation

The Company exanunes whether there are other promuses 1n the contract that are separate performance
obligatuons for which part of the transaction price must be allocated

When determtning the transactton price, account 15 taken of the impact of vanable consideravon, the
existence of sigmificant components of funding, non-cash constderanion and the remuneranon due to the

chient

Petformance obligation and mam wwpes of revenue under countraces with chents recognition

appecach
Traffic revenue

I he mam acnviey of the Company 18 related to the provision of aviation services both on the teratory of
the country and abroad

Traftic revenue inciude the proviston of internatonal and domesuc scheduled flights, international
chatrer flights and other flight-related services. The Company transfers the control over the services over
tume and therefore fuifils the performance obliganon and recognises revenue over ume. Traffic revenue
1 tecognived after the actual fhighte

The cost of the flight services may be defined as fixed consideratton. The aithine vcker price mcludes the
price of transport of both the passenger and the different amount of luggage depending on rhe applicable
tariff, on-board food, msurance, arpore charges and fuel charges Allocation of the transacnion price o
the performance obliganons 1s made based on vt prices.

The Company measures (ts progress towards a full setdement of the performance obligaton, fulfilled
over tume by a flight confinmauon and used luggage by the chents.

Tn the cases where chients have purchase uckets, but the usage options and/or the validity of the uckets
arc expired and they have not been used by the client, the Company recogmses income from tickets with
expired vahidity The portion of the consideration, whach related 1o airport charges, which the Company
usually collects fronm: clients as an agent 1s also recognises as mcome from tickets with expired validiy
thev are non-refundable and cannot be used.

Revenue from tickee sale when customer loyalty incentives are used

The Company has ongowng customer loyalty programs where customers can colleet bonus pownts {(award
credats), which can be exchanged for tree tckers for fhights of Bulgana A AD.

Inn the cases where the client can take advantage independenty of the goods or services, regardless of the
use of the gansport service, s constdered as a separate performance obligation, (f 1t gives a substannal
right

Reghts such as free e Juggage, busmess class transportation when purchased econony class nckets,
atrport business vouchers, Sixt rent-a-car discounts and other similar lovalty tewards are not considered
as separate performance obligations
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T the cases where customer loyally programs and the award creduts grant sygmificant nghts and are
constdered as a separate performance obligatton, the airhne recogmzes them as a separatcly wlentbiftable
performance obligation related to the sale in which the incenrives are given. The fair value of the recerved
remuncration or recervable m tespect of the mnal sale 1s distnbuted among the bonus poines (award
credits) and other components of the sale. The remunerason allocated to the bonus points 1 measured
by reference to therr farr value, 1¢ amount for wluch the award credirs could be sold separately The
company by wself provides the mcenoves for loyal customers and recognizes the remuncrations allocated
to the neennves as revenue when these incennves 1 the form of bonus points are redeemed and the
Company implements 1ts obligation of delivery The amount of the recognized revenue 1s based on the
number of award eredits that are exchanged for prizes 1 proportion to the total number that 1s expected
to be exchanged.

In analvsuig the customers lovalry program the Company has concluded that significant portion of the
award eredits cannot be considered as a separate performance obligation or are related o non-aviation
suppltes from other partners where the arrline acts as an agent Therefore the revenue from award credats
15 reporred as part of the revenue for sale of the neket and 10 the cases where they eantle them to trade
with trade partners — as a comnussion fee

Other racome v the scope of TFRS 15

The Company also repores other ncome, which 1s 1n the scope of IFRS 15 but 1s not classified as revenue,
other than the rraftic revenue. They are mainly related to the sale of goods and odher services

Revenue fiom the sale of goods 15 recogmsed when the company transfers 1o the buyer the sigmfieant
benetits and risks of ownership of the provided goods. Tt s considered that significant risks and benefics
are transferred to the buver when the client has accepred the goods withour objection.

Revenue from other services 15 recognised in the reporting peniod 1n which the services are provided.
The Company transfers the control of the services over ume and therefore this fulfils the performance
obhganon and recognise revenue over ume [f at the end of the reporting peniod the service 1s not fully
provided, the revenue 1s recognised based on the actual service, provided by the end of the reporting
penod as a proportional part of the total services to be provided, because the chient recerves and
consumes the benefits sunultaneously. This 15 determined based on the acrual time spent or reported
time for work, compared to the total expected e of service

The following table provides informaton on the applied by the Company accountng poliey for
recogmsing 1evenue and the onung of fulfiling the performance obligation for the execunion of contracts
with clients under IFRS 15 and TAS 18

Type of Nawre and timing for fulfilling of the Recognition of income under
good/service  performance  obligation, incl.  significant IFRS 15 (effective from 1 January

payment conditions 2018)
Carmying outr  Delivenes of ar freght service are carred our Revenue from flighes s recogntsed
Myghes and other throughouat the sear The cliene recerves and Over fme
thyht services consumes the benetits ar the same time, the

Company nansteis control over the service when
the fhght s actually made

Maline ocket sales da not have a financing
component, sinee sales are patd v a pertad of 7 o
15 das < via the BSP system of the TVE Y
meeinatonil organizanon, which 1~ comphance
with matket pracnce

A\ recervable s recognized when assers are
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Type of
good/service

Revenues  from
neker  ssuance
charges

Revenue  from

ncket sale wath

expred validiey

from

and

Revenues
[ETRIRN
perlties

Sale of goods

Movision ot
SCIVICES uther
than an

rransport

Nature and
performance

timing for
obligation,
payvment conditions

fulfiling of the

incl.  significant

delrvered, as this 1s the moment when the fight ro
temunctation becomes unconditional and only the
exptration of fime before the payment 1s due o
regured

“Lhe charge 1 pavable ar the ome of ncker sales. The
thuge for aung a ocket 18 an ntegral part of the
remuneranton for the flght ade

Lhe exprration of the perod of svahdig for cach

avplane ricket s a conditon for revenue recogmnon

The fine and /o penaln <hall be constdered as a
disomer service v rghe to addirtonal remuneranon
tor the Company m case of non-periotmance of the
Lllcu['s (thgﬂtl(mh ATINCS

Dehvary occurs when the poods have been slepped
to the customer, the risks ot potental losses arc

transterred and they have accepred the goods

If ar the end of the repotang petiod the service m
the  contrace

recognized  on

1~ not v realised, tevenue s

the basis of the acual  service

provided by dhe end of the reporting penod as a
propotton of the total services o be provided as the
recenes  and the  bencefis

chente consumes

simudrancously  This i deterouned on the basis ot
actual mme spent ot reparted nme for work, relanve

to the total expeated tme of service

T'he chent pays the services provided on the basis of
the dauses stpulated i the speatic contrace

Principal vs agent
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Recognition of income under
IFRS 15 (cffective from 1 January
2018)

Revenue 1s recognized afrer the fhght
has been made {over mc)

At the moment when the pertod of
vahdity of the nckets has expired and
there other  oprnons o
excrcise the nghts of the ssued
tickets by rhe
Company  recognizes

are 1o
customer,  the
the reveoue
from uckets and expired tees
Revenue 15 recognized  when the
condiion of aon-performance of
the (]b]lg:ltl()n or the customer's
retusal to use the service

Revenue trom sales of goods s
recognized when the control of the

assers sold s transferred

Revenue from provision ot services

5 recognized  mo rhe  accounting
penod m which rthe services are
rendered  The company transfers the
control osver the services over fime
sanshring the performance
obliganon, und recogntses revenue
over nme 16 the services provided by

the company exceed rhe payment, a

contract  asset 15 recognized. 1
pavments  exceed  the  serviees
provided, a  contract habiliey
recognized

When thurd party 1s tnvolved m providing goods or services to a customer, the Company shall determine

whether the nature of its promise 1s a performance obligaton to provide the spectfied goods or services

itself (t . the enuty 15 a puncpal) or to arrange for the other party to provide those goods or services (1 e.

the entity ts an agent).

An enuty 15 a pruncpal if the entiry controls a promused good or service before the entty transfers the
good or service to a customer [ Towever, an entity s not necessanly acung as a prncipal 1f the enuey
obtatns legal utle of a product oaly momentardy before legal ntle 1s transferred to a customer,

An ennty 15 an agent if the ennty's performance obligauon 1s to arvange for the provision of goods or
services by another pattv: When an enaty that s an agent satisfies a performance obligation, the enuty
tecognises revenue it the amount of any fee or commussion to which it expects to be entitled m exchange
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for arranging for the ather party to prowvide ats goods or services. .An enuty's fee or commssion nught be
the net amount of constderation that the entity retamns after paymg the other party the consideration
recetved 1 exchange for the goods or services to be provided by that party

Bulgaria Atr has signed interhine agreements with over 30 arrhines. Under these agreements, Bulgaria Air
acts as an agenr 1 the ticket 1ssuance for the sectors on which mrerline partners operate.

Trade receivables and contract assets

\ recervable 1s an entiey's nght to consideration that ts unconditional A right to consideraton 15
unconditional if only the passage of tme 15 required before payment of that consideration is duc,

.\ contract asset 1s an ennty's right to consideration 1n exchange for goods or services that the enaty has
transferred to a customer If an enuty performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays constderation or before pavyment 1s due, the ennty shall present the contract as a
contract asset for the actual performed consideration. Contract assets are reclassified as trade recetvables
when the nght for consideranon becomes uncondinonal.

Contract liabilities

As contract habiliry, the Company presents the payments received by the client and/ or an uncondinonal
nght to recetve a paviment before fulfilling its contractual performance obliganons Contract babihines are
recognized as tncome when {or as) 1t has been settled

Contract hiabilitics mclude the liabilitics on sold tckets for which at the date of the financial statement
the service has not vet been performed, 1.e. the transporratton has not occurred.

Assets and habihines artsing from a sigle contract are presented net in the stacement of financial positon
even 1f they are the result of different contractual performance obhgatnons

After imnal recogrition, trade recervables and contract assets are reviewed for umparrment 1n accordance
with 1FRS 9 inancaal Instruments

Orher income which ate not in the scope of IFRS 15

The foliowing table provides background informanon and related pohcies for recogninon of other
mcome outstde the scope of TFRS 15:

Other income Recognition approach

Reneal mecome induwding aplanes Rental income from operating leases v recognised as income on a

and premises srratghe-line basis over the lease term, except when the management of
the Company constders that another systemane basis refleces betier the
timing: model under which esage the benetit leased asset s reduced

Tncome  from sale of property,  Gams or losses artsig on the disposal of a property, plant, equipment or

plant  and  cqupment  and nrangible asset as a result of a sale are meluded 10 profic or loss when the

tntangihle assets assct e derecogmised The asset s detecognised at the ime the comtrol is
transtened to the undetly g asset

Tncome fron msurance danms Revenue i recopnmsed when the company's night o recerve pavment s
recognised as a form of compensation

[ncome trom wriing off labiitie: [ncome from witten off habihiwies 18 recognized after the exprranion
pertod  of the habihry  obliganon has ended, hqudaton  of  the
countetparty, the creditor warves his nghrs or otha
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Interest and dividend income

Inrerest income 15 accounted for usmg the effectve interest method.
Dnvidend tncome 1s recognized when the right to recetve payment 1s incurred.

1.7 Operating expenses

Operating expenses are recognized 1in profit or loss when using the services or on the date of thew
occurrence The Company recognizes two types of costs related to the exccunon of the service delivery
contracts with clieats contract costs and contract performance costs. When costs are not cligible for
deferral under TFRS 15, thev are recognived as cutrent at the umne they are mcurred, for instance, they
are not expected t be recovered, or the deferral period 1s up to one year

The following operating costs are always reflected as current expense when they occur

- General and adminsstranon costs (unless charged to the client),

- FExpenses for waste of matcenals;

- lixpenses related to the performance of the obligation,

- Costs for which an enuty cannot determine whether 1t 1s related to a sanshied or unsaustied

performance obligaton

Wartanty costs are recogmzed and deducted from the related provisions when recogmzing the related
revenue

Regarding the costs assoaated with non-adjustments and / or other compensation pﬂyable to customers,
the auline has 1etained 1ts curtent 1eporting approach as a curtent expense. IFRS 15 does not provide
exphictt gwdanee for reporting thus type of benefit. The Company considers that there 1s no proviston for
a scparate good or service against which this benefit will be reduced.

4.8 Interest expenses and horrowing costs

Interest expenses are reported on an accrual basts using the effective mterest method.

Borrowing costs primanly compnse interest on the Company's borrowings Borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 2 quahfiing asset are capitalized during the
perod of tume that 1s necessary to complete and prepare the asset for 1ts intended use or sale Other
borrowing costs are expensced m the petiod in which they are incutred and reported 1n 'Finance costs'.

4.9 Aprerafts, engines and prapercey, plant and equipment

An ttem of arerafts, engines and property, plant and equipment 1s tuually recognized at cost, which
comprises its putchase price and any directly attnbutable costs to prepanng the asset for its mntended use

Subsequent to intnal recogniton airerafts, engines and other property, plant and equipment are measured
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses Tmpairment losses are
recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive mcome 1n the respecuve penod.

Subsequent expenditure relaung to an wem of arcrafts, engines and other propetty, plant and equipment
s added to the carrving amount of the asset when 1t 15 probable that future cconotmuc benefits will flow
to the enuty, whuch are in excess of the onginally assessed cffectiveness of the existing asset All other
subscquent expenditure 1s recognized as an expense in the penod m which 1t 1s mcurred

Fstimates about the restdual value and the useful life of all items of arrcrafts, engines and other property
» g ]
}Wl?lﬂt and cqupment are asscssed by the Iﬂﬂliﬂgtjtﬂt‘ﬂt at each I’CP()l‘llﬂ‘S' date.
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Subsequently, atrerafts, engines and other property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated unpairment losses Impatrment losses are recognized in
the respective pettod in the starement of profit or loss and other comprehensive mncome.

Depreciation of an ttem of arrcrafes, engines and other property, plant and cquupment 1s caleulared using
thie stratght-line method over the estumated useful bife of mdividual assets as follows

®  aircrafts 20 years

*  cngines 12 years

¢ buldings and roads 25 years

&  machines 3 vears

¢ motor velucles + years

s office cquipment 7 yvears

e computers 2 vears

&  others 7 vears

¢ improvements of leased assets for the term of the contract

Gamn or losses ansing on the disposal of tangible assets are determined as the difference berween the
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are recogmzed wn the statement of profir or
loss and other comprehensive meome within “Gain/Loss from sale of non-current assets”

The recogninon threshold, adopted by the Company for atreraft, cngines and other property, plant and
cquipment amounts to BGN 700

4,10 Tnumuoible assers

[ntangible assets mclude nght of ownerslup, software, hcenses, ceruficates and expenditure on
mrangbles” acquisition They are accounted for using the cost model. The cost compnscs 1ts purchase
prce, mcluding any ymport dutes and non-refundable purchase raxes, and any direetly attrbutable
expenditure on prepanng the asset for s mtended use

Subsequently, an meangible asser 15 measuted at 113 cost less any accumulated amortizadon and any
accumulated imparment losses Tmpairment losses are recogtized as an expense in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the respective perod.

Subsequent expendhture after nutial recogninion of the intangible assets 15 recognized m the statement of
profit ot loss and other comprchenstve mcome when meurred unless i 1s probable that this expenditure
will enable the asset to generate future economic benefits m excess of 1ts ongnally assessed standard of
performance and this expenditure can be measured reliably and artmbuted to the asset If these two
condinons are met, the subseguent expendiure 15 added to the carrying amount of the mtangible asser.

Residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each reporung date.

Vmorneation ts caleulated using the strayrhi-hine method over the estmated useful life of individual assers
as follows,

*  softwarc 2 vears
e lcenses 7 years
s rght of owaership for the term of the use

vmoruration has been mcluded within ‘Depreciation and amortizanon of non-financial assers’ 1 the
statement of profit or loss and other compichensive income.
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The gamn or loss arsing on the disposal of an intangible asset 1s derermuned as the difference between the
g g P &

proceeds and rhe carrving amount of the asset, and 15 recogrized 1 the statement of profir or loss and
other comprehenstve mcome within “Gam/Loss on sale of non-current assets”.

The recogmiaon threshold adopted by the Company for the mntangible assets amounts to BGN 700,

4.1 Invesiment properi

The investment property of the Company mcludes buldings held to generate rental income and/or for
capttal apprecianon.

The mvestment property 1s tmbally measured at cost, which comprises the purchase price and any directly
attnbutable expenses, e. g legal fees, property transfer raxes and other transacton costs

Revaluation of the investment property 1s carried out on an annual basts and 15 included 1 the sratement
of financial posttion at 11s market value Market values are determined by mdependent appratsers with
professional qualificarton and selid expenence depending on the nature and locaton of the mvestment
property, based on cvidence of market conditions.

Anv gan or loss ansing from changes . farr value or from the sale of an mnvestment property 1s
recognized immedratelv i profic or loss within "Changes in fair value of investment properry”.

Subsequent cxpenditure relanng to mvestment property, which s aleeady recogmized m the Company’s
financial statements, 15 added to the carrving amount of the investment property when 1t 1s probable that
this expenditure will enable the existing mvestment property to generate future economic benefits in
excess of 1ts ongmally assessed vajue. All other subsequent expenditure 1s recogmzed as incurred.

The invesuneat property 13 derecogmrzed upon 1ts sale or permanent wathdrawal from use n case that no
future economuc benefits are expected from its disposal Gams or losses arsing from the disposal of
mvestment propertics are deterrmned as the difference berween the net disposal proceeds and the
carrving amount ot the asset and are recognized 1 the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehenstve mcome

Reneal mecome and operating expenses from mvestment property are reported within 'Other income' and
'Other expenses’ respecuvely, and are recogmized as desenibed in note 4.6

412 Operaung lease
The Company as a Ievice
Pavments on operaang lease agreements are recognirzed as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term Assoctated costs, such as maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred.
The Company us a Levar

In cases whea the Company s the lessor, assets subject 1o operatng lease agreements are presented m
the statement of financtal posttion and are depreciated and amortized 1 accordance wath the depreciation
and amortzation policy of the Company for similar assets and with the requirements of TAS 16
“Property, Plant and Lquipment” and TAS 38 “Intangble Assets” Income from operatung lease contracts
1s recognized on a straght-line bass i the statement of comprehensive income for the reporting petod.
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4,13 Tests of imparrment of non-Anancial assets

For the purposes of assessing unpasrment, assets arc grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
largely independent cash inflows {(cash-generating units} s a result, some assets are tested indrvidually
for impatrment and some are tested at cash-generating umt level.

All assers and cash-generatng unirs are tested for impairment at least ence a year All other individual
assels or casli-generating umits are tested for impairment whencver events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrving amount may not be recoverable

\n nmpatment loss 1s recognized for the amount by which the asset's or cash-generating umt's carrying
amount exceeds s recoverable amount, which 1s the higher of farr valuc less costs to sell and value-1n-
use. T'o determine the value-in-use, management estrmates expected future cash flows from each cash-
generating unit and determines a suttable nterest rate in order to caleulate the present value of those cash
flows The dara used for impairment testing procedutes are directly inked to the Company's latest
approved budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of funire reorganizations and assct
enhancements. Discount factors are determimed individually for each cash-generaung wmt and reflect
thetr respective nisk profiles as assessed by management

Ipairment losses for cash-geaeranog unies reduce the carrying amount of the assets allocaced to that
cash-generating umt. All assets are subsequently reassessed for mdicanions that an imparment loss
previously recognized may no longer exist \n imparment charge 1s reversed 1f the cash-generating unit’s
recoverable amount exceeds 1ts carrving amount.

4.4 Financual sasnoments ander IFRS 9, effective since { January 20148

1.14.1 Recogmtion and derecogniton

Financial assets and financial habilines are recogmsed when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecogrused when the contractual nghts to the cash flows from the financal asset
exptre, or when the financial asser and substantially 2ll the risks and rewards are transferred.

2\ financial habdity 1s derecogmsed when 1t 15 exnngushed, discharged, cancelled or expires

4.14 2 Cla~stfication and nitial measurement of financial assets

Financtal asscts are untially measured at fatr value, adjusted for transaction costs, except for financial
assers at far value through profit or loss and trade recervables that do not contain a sigmficant financial
component The untial measurement of financaial assets at fair value through piofit ot loss 1s not adjusted
with ransaction costs that are reported as current expenses The initial measurement of trade recervables
that do not contan a sigmificant financial compeonent represents the transaction price in accordance with
IIFRS 15,

Depending on the method of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following
categories

e  Debrt instruments at amorased cost,

¢  TIinanaal asscts at fatr value through profit or loss (FVTPL),

e Fmanaal assets at fann value through other comprchensive income (FVOCT) with or without
reclasstfication 1n profit or loss, depending on whether they are debt or equity mstnuments.

‘L'he classaficatton s determned by both

e the enaty’s business model for managing the financial asser;

¢ the contractual cash flow characterstics of the financal asset
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Al micome and expenses relaung to financial assets that are recognised in profit or loss are presented
within finance costs, finance income or other financial 1tems, except for impairment of trade recetvables
which t+ presented within other expenses n the statement of profic or loss/ statement of profit or loss
and other comprchensive income

4. 14.3 Subscquent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financtal assets ate measured at amortised cost 1f the asscts meert the followmng conditons and are not
designated as IN1ITL

o they arc held within a business model whose objective 1s to hold the financial assets and collect
its contractual cash flows,

¢ the coneractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and mterest on the princtpal amount cutstanding,

This cacegory mcludes non-derrvatrve financial assets like loans and receivables with fixed or
deternmunable payments that are not quoted m an active market After imtal recognition, these are
measured at amorased cost using the etfectve mterest method Discounnng 1s omtted where the effect
of discountng 15 immatertal The Company classifies m this category cash and cash equivalents, trade
aund other recervables, related party recervables

o Trade receivables

Trade recervables are amounts due from customers for goods or services sold m the ordinary course of
business Typrcally, they are due to be serded within a short ameframe and are therefore classified as
current. Trade recervables are nutally recognized at amortized cost unless they conramn sigmficant
financial components ‘T'he Company holds trade receivables for the purpose of collecting the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them at amortized cost using the effective mrerest method
Discounting 1s omutted where the effect of discounting ts immaterial.

Recervables from related parnes arsing outside the ordmary course of business of the Company are
measured at amortized cost using the effectrve interest method Depending on the arrangements, they
can be classified as short-term and/or long-term.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
‘The Compam accounts for financaial assets at FVOCT «f the assets meet the following conditions:

e they are held under a bustness model whose objective 1t 15 “hold to collect” the assoctated cash
flows and sell; and

o the contractual tertns of the financial assets give nse to cash flows that are solely payments of
prmneipal and 1nrerest on the prinapal amount ontstanding.

The financal assets at F'VOCT include

e Lquity secunties that are not held for wading and which ar iniual recognon the company
trrevocably has chosen o recognize m thas category, These are strategic mvestments and the
company consilers this classificarion to be more relevant

s Debt secunnes where the contractual cash flows ate solely payments of prmcipal and interest
and the purpose of the company's business model 1s achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and by selling the financial assets.

On disposal of equity instruments of this category, any amount recogmzed 1 the revaluanon reserve 1s
reclassified to retamed carnmgs.



20

BULGARIA ATR AD

I'inancial Statements g
wigarig Amr
3l Dcccmbcr 2018 Vs o ?‘g' r wwwoirty \

On disposal of debt msoruments of this category, any amount recognized i the revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profic or loss for the pentod

+.14.4 Impairment of financial assets

TFRS 9% new mmpatrment requirements use more forward-looking informaton to recognise expected
credit Jasses — the “expected credit loss” (ECL) model This replaces 1AS 39°s “mncurred loss model”

Instruments withi the scope of the new requirements mcluded loans and other debt-type financal assets
measured at amortised cost/ FVOCT, trade recervables, contract assets recognised and measured under
IFRS 15 and loan commitments and some financial guarantee contracts (for the issuer) that are not
measured at far value through profit or loss.

Recogninon of credit losses 1s no longer dependent on the Company first idenufying a credit loss event.
Instead the Company considers a broader range of information when assessing eredit nisk and measuring
expected credit losses, including past events, current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts
that affect the expected collectability of the future cash flows of the mstrumernt.

Trade and other receivables, related party receivables

The Company makes use of a sunplitied approach in accountung for trade and other recervables as well
as contract assets and records the foss allowance as ifeume expecred credit losses These are the expected
shortfaitls 1n contracrual cash flows, considering the potenual for default at any pomnt durmg the hfe of
the financtal instrument In calculaong, the Company uses tts historical experience, external indicators
and forward-looking nformation to calculate the expected credit losses using a provision matrix
Orther recervables and related party recetvables comprise of few in number of chents and therefore an
individual approach 1 applied.
The Company prepares an analvsis of the expected shortfall 1n the contracted cash flows, takung into
account the posabiliey of default on related party receivables The Company's judgment s based both on
historical mformation and on long-term expectations Recetvables are tested on an mdividual basts and
are divided mto two groups:

- Recervables from sharcholders,

- Recewvables from other related parties
For sharcholders’ recetvables {with agreed maturity and interest rate), the expected credic losses are
caleulated by discounting the claims over the term of the contract with an effective mrterest rate based on
the agreed interest rate and further adjusted to reflect future expectations The following factors shall be
taken into account when determining the value of the adjustments:

- lixpectanons and probabiity of early collection of the claim;

- The owners guatantee and finance the Company m case of shortage of funds in the course of 1ts

operagons,

- The probability of default of the agreed cash flows 15 nunimal
For recervables for which no interest s agreed, the effecuve interest rate 1s applied for stmlarly nmed
and featured financial instruments.
Expected credir losses on recervables from other related parties are calculated by disconnung the effective
mterest rate based on the agreed mterest rate and additional adjustments For recervables for which no
wterest 15 agreed, the cffective interest rate 1s applied for sunilardy tumed and featured financial
mstruments actors to be taken mto account i determinmg the effective mterest rarc are

- expectations for carly collectton of the claim,

- the effecnve receipts on the spectfic recavable;

- the probabilicy of default of the agreed cash flows,

- the exwstence of histoncal experience with the particular connected person,

- the type of company 's conncectivity,

- collateral
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Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
‘The Company recogniscs 12-month expecied eredit losses for finanaal assets at FVOGCL
The Company considers other indicators such as adverse changes m business, economic or financial

conditions that could affeer the borrower’s ability to meet its debt obliganon or unexpected changes mn
the borrower’s operatng results.

Should any of these indicators umply a sigmificant increase 1n the nstrument’s credit rsk, the Company
recogntses for this mstrament or class of instruments the hifetme FCL

4.14.5 Classificaton and measurement of financial habilities
The Company’s financial labnhties include borrowmgs, trade and other financial liabihties

Fanancial habihities are imually measured at fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs
untless the Company designated a financial lability at fawr value through profit or loss

Subsequently, financial habthies are measured at amornsed cost using the effecuve nrerest method
except for dertvanves and financial habihiues designated at FATPL, whitch are carned subsequently at far
value wich gans or losses recogmsed m profit or loss (other than dervauve financtal instruments that are
designaced and eftecuve as hedging unstruments).

Al interest-related charges and, 1f applicable, changes m an mstrument’s fair value that are reported in
profit or loss are included withun finance costs or finance ncome.

415 Fmanciab mstuments vider TAS 39, effective untl 31 December 2017
Fnanctal asscts and financial habilites are recogmzed when the Company becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the hnancal instrument

Financial assets are derecognized when the contracrual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire. or when the financial asset and all substanual nsks and rewards are transferred.

A financial halaliey 1s derecognized when 1t 1s exangushed, dlscharged, cancelled or exprres.

Financtal assers and financial labilittes are measured munally at fair value plus transactions costs, except
for fimancial assets and tinancial habilities carned ac fair value through profic or loss, which are measured
tmrtally ar fair value

Adl financial assets are recogmized on their transaction date.

Fmancial assets and financial habilities are subsequendy measured as descnbed below.

ENENR Financial ansets

For the purpose of subsequent measutement, financial asscts other than those designated and cffectve
as hedgtng matruments are classified mro the following categories upon 1mmual recognition,

®  loans and recervables,
* financial assets ar fawr value through profit or loss,

e eld-to-manutity investments,
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& avaulable-for-qale financial assets.

Fmancial assets are assigned to the different categories, depending on the purpose for which the
investments wete acqured. The category determines subsequent measurement and whether any resulting
mcome and expensc 1s recognized 1n profit or loss or in other comprehensive income. All financial assets
except tor those at farr value through profit or loss are subjeet to review for impairment art least at each
reporiing date Financial assets are tmpatred when there 1s any objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of fimancial assets ts impared. [Different crrerta to determine imparment are applied for each
category of financial assets, which are descnbed below.

All mecome and expenses relating to financial assets are recognized i profic or loss as incurred,
disregarding the method of measurement of the carrving amount of the respecave financial asset and are
presented 1 the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive mecome within "Finance coses'
and,'or 'Tinance income’, except for unpairment of trade recervables which s presented within 'Other

expenses’
Loans and receivables

Loans and recervables, that have minally occurred 1n the Company, are non-denvanve financial assets
with fixed payments that are not quoted 1 an actrve market Afrer imital recognution these are measured
at amortzed cost using the effecrne mterest method, less impatmment. Any change in therr value 1s
recognized m profit or loss for the respectve pertod The Company’s cash and cash equivalents, trade
and most other recervables fall nto this category of financial instruments. Discountng 1s omutted where
the effeer of discounting s mumatertal

Indredually significant recervables are consudered for impatrment when they are past due as of the date
of the finanaal statements or when other objective evidence 1s recerved that a spectfic counterparty will
default Reccivables that are not constdered to be individually significant are reviewed for impairment i
groups, which are determned by reference to the mndustry and region of a counterparty and other
available feature of shared credit nsk characteristics The percentage of the write down is then based on
recent historieal counterparty defaule rates for each denufied group Impatrment of trade recervables are
presented in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income within 'Other expenses’

Available-for-sale financial assets

Avatlabie-for-sale financial assets are non-derrvauve financial assets that are either designated to this
category or do not qualify for inclusion m any of the other categortes of financial assets.. Financial assets
within this category are subsequently measured at fair value, unless there 15 no market value ar active
markets present and hence ther fair value cannot be measured reliably. Those without quoted market
prices are measured at amortized cost using the effecuve mterest method or at cost 1n cases when they
do not have fixed date of pavment Changes 1n fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income
and reported within the available-for-sale reserve within cquity, net of 1acome taxes, except for
impatrment losses and toreign exchange differences on monetary assets, which are recognived tmn profit
or loss When the asset 1s disposed of or 15 determined to be impared, the cumulative gain or loss
recogiized in other comprehensive income 15 reclassified from the equity teserve to profit or loss and
presented as a reclassificanon adjusunent within other comprehensive mcome. Interest calculated using
the cffective mterest method and dividends are recognized 1n profit or loss within "Finance income’
Reversals of imparrment losses are recogmuzed m other comprehensive meome, except tor financial assets
that are debt sceurtties wihich are recognized w1 profit or loss only if the reversal caan be objectrvely related
to an evene oceurring atter the impatrment loss was recognized.

Financial assets at fair value through profit ot loss

Fmancial assets ai far value througlh profir or Joss include financial assets that are euither classified as held
for wadmg or that meet certam conditons and are designated at fair value through profic or loss upon
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imal recogmtion. Ml dervatrve financial wstruments fall into this category, except for thosce designated
and effectrve as hedging instruments  Asscts mm this category are measured at fair value with gans or
losses recogrised m profic or loss The far values of derrvatve financeal mstrumentes are determmed by
reference 1o acuve market transactions or using a valuanon techmque where no actve market exists

4.15.2 Financal habiliues

The Company’s frnancial habilines include bank loans, trade loans, trade pavables, related party payables,
and other payables

Financal labilities are recogmred when the Company becomes a party to the contractual agreements for
payment of cash amounts or another financial asset to another company or contractual hability for
exchange of financial mstruments with another company under unfavourable terms. All interest-related
charges and, «f applicable, changes m an instrument’s farr value that are reported m profit or loss are
mcluded within 'Tnance costs” or 'Finance income’

Fmancial labilines are measured subsequently at amornzed cost using the effecuve mrerest mechod,
except for financtal labihties held for trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss, that are
carrted subscquently at fatr value with gains or losses recognized m profit or loss.

Bank loans are ratsed for funding of the Company’s operatons. They are recognized in the staternent of
financial positon of the Company, net of any costs Fiance charges, mecluding premiums pavable on
settlement or redempuion and direct tssue costs, are charged to the statement of profit ot loss and other
comprehensive mncome on an accrual basis using the effective mterest method and are added 1o the
carrvisy amount of the futancial habilice to the extent that they are not seeded m the pentod in which chey

arise

Trade loans are taken mn relanon to the investment acuvity of the Company They are recognized 1n the
statement of financial posttion of the Company, net of any costs. They are recogmized at amoruzed cost.

Trade payables are recogniced mtually at their nomtnal value and subscquently measured at amortized

cost less seudement payments.

4,16 laventotics

Tnventores include spare parts, raw matenals and goods. Cost of inventones includes all expenses direcdy
artriburable 16 the purchase or manufactunng process, recychng and other direct cxpenses connected w
their delrvery Financing costs are not included 1n the cost of the mventores. (At the end of the reporung
penod, inventories are carnied ar the lower of cost and net realizable value The amount of each
unpatrment of mventores up to their net realizable value 1s recogmzed as an cxpense for the period of

nupatrmertc

Net realizable value ts the estmated seling price of the inventones less any applicable selling expenses
In case mventornes have already been nnparred to their net realizable value and 1n the following pertod
the mpairment conditions are no longer presens, than the ncw net realizable valuc 1s adopted The
reversal amount can only be up to the carrying atmount of the inventones pror to thett impaitment The
reversal of the impawrment 1s accounted for as deercase i mventory expenses for the period in which the
reversal takes place The Company determunes the cost of inventones by using the weighted average cost,

When inventorces are sold, the carrring amount of those mventornes 1s recognized as an expense in the
pertod in which the related revenue s recognmized.
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4.17  Income tanes

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax not recognired
1 other comprehensive income or directly m equaty.

Current ncome tax assets and/or habilines comprise those obligations e, or claims from, fiscal
authornties rebatmy o the current or priot reporting pertods, that are unpaid at the reporting date  Current
tax 18 payable on taxable profit, which differs from profit or loss in the financial statements. Caleulation
of current tax 1s bascd on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substanuvely enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred mcome taxes are calculated using the hability method on temporary differences between the
cartyimg amounrs of assets and habilities and therr tax bases. However, deferred rax 1s not provided on
the minal recogmnon of an asset or hability unless the related wransacuon affects tax or accounnng profit,

Deferred tax assets and liabiines are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates thar are expected to
apply to thetr respectve period of realizanon, provided they are enacted or substanuvely enacted by the
end of the reporting penind

Deferred tax habilines are always provided for in full.

Deferred rax assers are recognized 1o the extent that 1t 1s probable that thev will be able 1o be uulized
against future taxable income For management's assessment of the probabihity of future taxable income

to unhze aganst deferred tax assets, see note 4+ 22

Deferted tax assers and habilines are offset only when the Company has a right and mrenuon to set off
current tax assets and labiltttes from the same waxation authonty.

Changes 1n deferred tax assets or habibinies are recogmzed as a component of tax income or expense
profit ot loss, except where they relate to 1rems rhat are recogmized in other comprehensive income or
directy m equity, 1n which case the related deferred tax 1s also recognized in other comprehensive income
or equuty, respectively.
+.18  Cash and cash equrvalents

Cash and cash cquivalents compnse cash on hand, current bank accounts, demand depostts together with
other short-term, hughly guid mvestments that are readily converuble mto known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant nisk of changes m value. Restricted cash of the Company are deposits

under contracts for operating lease of atrcraft which are assumed to be released when defimite
crcumstances and conditions are met according to the agreements signed.

449 Baqung

Share capital represents the nonunal value of shares that have been tssued

Common reserves are formed using part of retained earmngs m accordance with the effective legislation

Other reserves comprise amounts, formed under requurements of the effecuve legislation, as well as
amounts, representing addinonal capital contnbutions made by the majority owner and reserves from
revaluanon of habihues under defined benefit plans

The accumulated loss includes the current penod result from the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehenstve income and the retaned profits and uncovered losses from prior penods.
All transactions with owners of the Company arc recorded separately within equaty.
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4.2 Pension and other emplovee obligatons

‘The Company provides past-emplovment benefits through defined benefit plans as well as various
defined contributon plans.

A defined contrbunon plan 1s a penston plan under which the Company pays fixed contnbunoens into
state plans m accordance witl the Bulganan labor legislavon The Company has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay futther contributions after 1ts pavment of the fixed contnbunon. Contributions to the
plans are recogruzed as an expense 1a the pertod that relevant employvee services are recerved

The defined benefit plan sponsored by the Company defines the amount of pension benefit that an
L’l]‘l‘)l()_\’(ﬁ.(’ \\.'111 recerve on retireiment b\' l'Cfef(‘:ﬂCC O l(:ng[h Of Rt‘r\’iCC aﬂd t—lﬂﬂ] Sﬂ.lﬁr_\— 'Fhﬁ lﬁga] ()b]_lgﬂ[lol]
tor any benefits remans with the Company

The lhability recogmzed 1in the statement of financal positon for defined benefit plans 15 the present
value of the defined benefit obliganon (DBQO)) at the reporung date

Management esumates the DBO) annually with the assistance of mdependent actuanes. The esamate of
s post-rettrement benefic obliganons 1s based on standard rates of nflavon, medical cost trends and
mortality Tt also takes mro account the Company's speatfic antapanon of future salary increases
Discount tactors are detenmined close to cach vear-end by reterence to high quality corporate bonds that
are denomunated in the curieacy 1t which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to marunty
approxunannyg to the rerms of the related pension habiity

Actuarial gains and losses are recogmized 1n the other comprchensive meome

Interest expense related 1o penston obligaaons s included in 'Finance costs” in profit or loss Service cost
on the defined benefit hability 1s included i 'Emplovee benefits expense’

The Company reports short-term pavables relating to unurlized paid leaves, which shall be compensated
n case 1t 15 expected the leaves to occur within 12 months after the end of the reportng penod during
which the emplovees have performed the work related to those leaves. The short term pavables to
personnel mclude wages, salaries and related soctal secunty payments Short-term employee benefits,
micluding holiday enutlement, are current habilines included 1 'pension and other employee obligauons’,
measured ac the undiscounted amouat that the Company expects to pay as a result of the unused

enntement

4.2 Provistons, contingent habilities and contungent assers

Provisions are recogiized when present obligations as a result of a past event will probably lead to an
outflow of cconomic resources from the Company and amounts can be esumated reltably Timing or
amount of the outflow may sull be uncertain. A present obligation anses from the presence of a legal or
constructive commitment that has resulted from past events, for example, granted product warrantes,
legal disputes or oncerous contracts Restructuring provisions are recogmzed only 1f a detaled formal plan
for the restructurning has been dcvcfopt'd and mmplemented, or management has at least announced the
plan's man features to those atfected by 1t Provisions are not recognized for future operanng losses

Provisions are measured at the esttmated expenditure requuired to settle the present obligation, based on
the most rehiable evidence avattable ar the reporung date, including the nisks and uncerrainues associated
with the present obliganon. Provisions are discounted to thetr present values, where the tume value of
money 1s matertal.

‘ny reimbursement that the Company can be virtually certamn to collect from a third party with respect
to the obligation 1s recogmzed as a sepatate asset Towever, this asset mav not exceed the amount of the
rclated provision
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M provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best esumate Tn
those cases where the possible outflow of economic resources as a result of present obhgacons 1s
cousidered improbable or remote, no liability 1s recognized. The Company does not recogmize contungent
assets (e financial statements as 1f a contngent asset 1s recognived this may result m the recognition
of mncome that mav never be reahzed

422 significant management pudgment in apphing accounting pohoies

The following are significant management judgments in applying the accountng policies of the Company
that have the most sigruficant effect on the financial statements. Crincal estimation uncertuntics are
described in note 4 22,

4,221 Revenue from ocket sale with expated salidity

The company mamly provides transportation services of passengers in the pertod the uckets have been
tssued for. Revenue from passengers’ transportaton ts recognized when the transportanon 1s actually
performed There are cases when the clients do not use their nckets and therefote the vahidity of the
ticket exprres and 1t 1s no longer avalable for use In this case the Company writes-off the existing
obligaton for transpottanen service as other mcome. The amount of other income includes the atrport
fees and taxes related to the exped arr icket Revenue recogmuon of uckets and arrport fees with exptred
validity 15 based on stausueal mformation extracted from the databases mmntaned by the Company The
management believes dhat the expiraton of the vahdiry of each ncket, when not being used, gives reason
for recognitton of tevenue This understanding s based on the basic prinetple for the recogniton of
revenue, prectsely that 1c1s based on actual services rendered.

4.22.2 Resenue from ticket sale i cases when the flight has been intetrupted and /or
rerouted

\s 2 member of the Internaoonal \ir Transport Assoaation — IAT A, the Company should follow the
rules for atr transporanon set forth by TATA According to TAT.A resolutions 735d and 735e, i cases
of involuntary rerouting and/or flight mnterrupnions, the airline company 1s obliged to tssue a document
called FIN (Flight Interruption Maatfestj. The FIN 15 valtd for a certain fhight of the agent atrling
company that 1s different from the arrflne company that has aunally 1ssued the original flight ticket

\ecording to chapter A2, p. 2.6.1 of RAM (Revenue Accounung Manual), when there 1s a FIN 1ssued,
the accepunyg side (the agent arhine company) charges the issuer of the FIA with the applicable full one-
way 1arift for the respective par of cities whete the transportation has occurred A FIM can mclude
number of tckets and the obliganon should be recognized using the tanff vahd for the travel class of
each passenger, applicable for the flight dare. After recerving the mvoice, the recerving airline company
(that has performed the fhight) has the right within 6 months to make a re-debit based on the prorate
value mn accordance with chapter A2, p. 2.6 2 and chapter AL0, p. 4 1. of RAM. Upon receiving the re-
debit invorce, the open balance can be closed. \ter the 6 month perod for objections /re-debit/ has
expired, the amounts that have not been disputed, are recognized as income.

The tevenue recognition 15 based on past experience and the Management considers that 95% of the
value of all issued and undispuced FTMs gives basts for the recognition of revenue based on actual services
performed

For the current 2018 year as well ay for the prior pentods, approxumately 5% o of the value of all 1ssued
FININ has been recognized as revenue and the rest has been presented within Other hiabilives

4.22.3  Hevewvue from dchet sale when cusiomer fovalyy incentives ase ased

The Company has ongoing customer lovalty programs where customers can collect bonus points (award
credits), which can be exchanged for free nckets for flights of Bulgarna A AD
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Tn cases where the customer can take advantage of the goods or scrvice independently, regardless of the
use of the shipiment service, 1t 1s constdered as a separate enforcement obligation 1f 1t gives 2 substantial

nght

Rights such as free transporranon of addinonal luggage, flight m busmess class with a ucket for economy
class, vouchers for the busiess lounge at the airport, competitive discounts when renting vehicles from
Sixt and other incentives for loval customers, are not considered separate performance obligations.

In cases where lovalty programs and loyalty credits grant substantal nghts and are considered as a
separate performance obligation, the aithine recogmzes them as a separately idenunfiable performance
obhiganon 1 relation to the sale m which the mncentives are given. The fair value of the consideratnon
recerved or recervable i 1espect of the 1ninal sale 1s divided between the bonus pomnts (lovalty credits)
and the other components of the sale Remuneration allocated to bonus points 1s assessed by reference
to thetr fair value, 1 ¢. the amount by which the prize moner may be sold separatcly. The Company only
provides the meentves for loyal customers and recogruzes the reward allocated o the incenuves as
revenue when these meennves i the form of bonus pomts are replaced and the Company fulfils its
obliganion o deliver them, The amount of recognized revenue 1s based on the number of lovaley credits
that have been replaced for rewards 10 proporton to the total number expected to be redeemed.

The recogmuon of lovalty credits 1s based on an estmate of the management’s probabihity that they wall
be wed within their hfetme. Therefore, the amount of teported bonuses and discounts and relaced
carnimgs may differ from acrual resulis. On the other hand, the lovalty programas not an essenual element
of the Company's financial statements

4224 Allowances fin trading greenhouse gas emissions

According to the requirements of the Directive 2003/87 / BC of the European Parthament and of the
Counctl regulating the scheme for tradmg greenhouse gas emissions under the Commumty, aviation
actvites are mcluded i1 a single European tradmg scheme for greenhouse gases (U L'TS) For pentods
after January 1, 2012 anr-companies parucipate m this mechamism o reduce the hapnful environmental
impact

Companics have been granted part of their quotas for emission of greenhouse gases By 30 Apnl of next
veat, atr carriers must provide the number of allowances for greenhouse gas emissions used 1n the current
vear to the EU ETS regster.

Due to the absence of an accounting standard or imterpretanon under TFRS that speafically address the
accountng for transactions relating to the emusston of greenhouse gases (CO2 enusstons), the Compamy’s
management has developed accounting policies considered most relevant and reliable for the purposes
of the users of financtal informanon. The Company adopted the “net lability approach™ i regard to the
accounung treatment of the greenhouse gas ermssion nghts According to this approach, the Company
docs not recognize an asset or revenue for the emisstons granted by the Executive Environment Agency

The allowances for greenhouse gas emissions (CO2 emussions), granted by state, are not recognized 1n
the balance sheet, but are recorded off-balance When annual greenhouse gas emissions exceed the
avatlable allowances, the obligation for the excess 1s measured at the fair value of greenhouse gas emission
allowances by the end of the repotung pertod and a provision obligation 1s recogmired

Proviston 15 recogmzed only 1f the actual quantty of greenhouse gas ermussions exceed the quanurty of
enusstons granted The provision 1s accounted for other operaung expense in the Statement of profit and
lows and other comprehensive mcome  Greenhouse gas emssion nphts acquired and exceeding the
cntsstons granted should be recognised as an assct at cost.

Toral quanury of quotas is vertfied by a report 1ssued by an independent aceredited body.
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1.22.3 Dieferred tax assets

The asscssment of the probabitity of future taxable tncome 1n which deferred tax assets can be unlized 1s
based on the Company's latest approved budget forceast, which 1s adjusted for sigmficant non-taxable
income and expenses and specific hmits to the use of any unused tax loss or credit. Tf a posiave forecast
of taxable mcome mndicates the probable use of a deferred tax asset, espectally when 1t can be utihzed
without a tume lomut, that deferred ax asset 1s usually recognized m full. The recogmuon of deferred tax
assets that are subyect w certamn legal or economice umits or uncertanues is assessed mdividually by
mandgemett based on the specific faces and circurmstances.

4220  Recogniton of joint venrure revenue and expenses

The management has analysed the Company’s partcipation n Consortiam Bulgana Air — Posoka and in
Consortiutn Bulgana  Air and Posoka DZ7D  The partapations are classified as “joint vemrture”
according 1o IFRS {1 “Joint Arrangements”. Tn connecnon with its partcipanon m the jomt venture the
Company has recognized revenues from sale of air tickets 1 the amount of BGN 510 thousand from
Consornum Bulgana \ir — Posoka D77 and BGN 117 thousand from Consortium Bulgarna Air and
Posoka DAY

423 stomauon uncertainty

When prepanng the financial statements management undertakes a number of jdgments, esiimates and
assumptions about recognition and measurement of assets, hiabiites, income and expenses.

The actual resuls may differ from the judgments, esamates and assumptions made by management, and
will seldom equal the esumated results

Informanon about significant judgiments, estmates and assumptions that have the most signuficant effect
on recogninion and measurement of assers, habiites, mcome and expenses are discussed below.

$.23.1 Impairment of non-financial assets

An impatrment loss 1s recogmized for the amount by which the assct's or cash-generating umt's carrying
amount excecds 1ts recoverable amount. To determune the value-m-use, management estimates cxpected
future cash tlows from each cash-generaung unit and determines a suitable discount factor 1n order to
calculate the preseat value of those cash flows (see note 4.13). In the process of measunng expected
furure cash flows management makes assumpnons about fucure operating results These assumpuons
relate to future events and crcwmstances The actual results may vary, and may cause significant
adjustments to the Company's assets withm the next financial vear.

In most cases, deternimng the applicable discount rate mvolves csumaung the appropnate adpustment
to market nsk and the appropnate adjustment to asset-specific nisk factors

$.23.2 Calculution of expected credit losses

Credit losses are the difference between all contractual cash flows payable to the Company and all cash
flows that the Company expects to recurve

Iixpected credit losses are a probabiliv-weighted estimarte of credi losses that require the Company's
judgment Expected credie losses are discounted at the ongmal cffecave interest rate (or the effective
interest rate corrected m respect of the loan for purchased or mmtally created financil assets wirth credie
unpalrment}
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4.23.3 Useful ives of depreciable assets

Management reviews the useful lives of depreciable assets at cach reporung date

At 31 December 2018 management assesses that the useful ives represent the expected utihity of the
assets o the Company. The carrving amounts are analvsed in notes 5,6,7 and 8 \ctual results, however,
may vary duc to techmeal obsolescence, parucularly relating to aireraft and engines, software and IT
equpment

4.23.4 I entones

Tnventones are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value In estumanng net realizable values,
management takes mto account the maost rehiable evtdence avaiable at the umes the estimates are made.
The Company's core business is subject to technology changes wlhich may cause selling prices of spare
parts for arrcrafrs to change rapidly Moreover, future reahzauon of the carrymng amounrts of invenrory
assets — spare parts for arrcraft, BGN 5 300 thousand (2017 BGN 5 138 thousand) 1s affected by use
and type of the arrerafi park

1.23.5 Defined benefit obliganon

Management esumates the defined benefit obliganon annually with the assistance of independent actuary.
However, the actual outcome may van- due to estunanon uncertamties. The estnate of s defimed benefit
obliganon of BGN 922 thousand (2017 BGN 843 thousand) 1s based on standard rates of mflaton,
medical cosr trends and mortaliy, I also rakes into account the Company's specific anucipanon of future
salary increases. [Dwcount factors are detertmined close to each vear-end by reference to high qualiry
corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have
terms 1o matunty approximatng to the terms of the related pension habiliry.

Fsttmanon uncertamnties exist particularly with regard to both medical cost trends and expected rate of
return, which may varv signtticantly in future apprasals of the Company's defined benefit obhiganons.

4.23.6 Fair value mcasurement

Management uses valuauon techmrques mw measuring the fair value of financial mstruments (where active
market quotes arc not avaiable) and non-finanaal assets. This mvolves developmg cstimates and
assumptions conststent with how marker participants would price the mstrument. Management bases its
assumptions on observable data as far as possble but this 15 not always available Tn that case
management uses the best informanon avatlable. Fstimated fair values may vary from the actual prices
that would be aclieved 1n an arm's length transacuon at the reporting date (sce note 38).

4.237  Provisions
Provision on allowances for trading greenhouse gas emissions (CO)
The Company recognises provision for greenhouse gas emussions when the actual quanuty of greenhouse
gas cmissions exceeds the quantity of enmssions granted. The provision amount 1s based on the price
quotes of the tesellers as at the end of the repornng pertod. Further details are provided 1n note 21
Legal provisions
As ar the end of the reportng period, the Company 15 currently defending certain lawswits where the
actual outcome mav vary from the amount recognived in the financral statements None of the provisions
will be diseussed here in further detail so as not to sertously prejudice the Company's position 1 the
related disputes
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£.23.8 Oeher Hahibities

The amount recognived as a deferred revenue from services amounting to BGN 214 thousand
{2016 BGN 1 270 thousand) has been esumated by management after overall review of the rent avrplanes
and chartered fhights services that have been rendered and detaded consideration of all conrractual
agreements for charter services [ lowever, the actual outcome may vary due to unespected changes m
the pautern of services provided.

Crther company’s habihities include the obligation to render transportation services to passengers, cargo
and matl, for which the contractual term ot pertod the ticket was 1ssued for, have not occurred vet. Based
on past expenience, the Company’s management believes that not all sold uckets will be flown and
therefore patt of the cost of obligations for the implementation of the services will be reported as revenue
from scheduled flights, while others - as other revenues. Deraled description of the sigmficant esumates
ot the Company 15 presented in note 4 22

Esnmares and assumptions have been made i regards to the aceruals of the Company’s trade payables
related o the supply of fuel and all other services recerved m relation to landing and ground handling for
December of each calendar vear. Tt takes tame to recerve invotces for all delivertes, which leads o
estimated accraals for these expenses As of 31 December 2018 the deliveries of fucl as well as landing
tees, flving and attendance services that have not been mvolced amount to BGN 1 thousand (2017: BGN
1 thousand)
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5 Aarerafus and spare engmes
The carrving amount of arcrafts and spare engnes, presented i the statement of financial posttion at 31

December 2018 s calculated as follows,

Improvements Spare engines Equipment for Total
for aircrafts aircrafts
BGN*000 BGIN‘000 BGN’000 BGN‘000

Gross carrying amount
Balance at | January 2018 73 2 848 633 3 554
Balance at 31 December 2018 73 2 B48 633 3554
Depreciation
Balance at 1 January 2008 (56) (1582) (633) (2271)
Depreciation () (344 - (351
Balance at 31 December 2018 (63) (1926) (633) (2 622)
Carryving amount at
31 D-ece;:nber 2018 10 922 } 932

Improvements Spare engines Equipment for Total

for aircrafts aircrafts
BGN000 BGN‘“000 BGN’000 BGN*“000

Gross carrying amount
Balance at 1 January 2017 73 2 848 633 3 554
vddinons - - - -
Disposals - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2017 73 2 848 633 3 554
Depreciation
Balance at 1 January 2017 (50 {1220) (630) (1 900)
Depreciation (6) (362) {3) (371)
Disposals - - - -
Ralance at 31 December 2017 (56) _(1582) (633) (2271
Carrying amount at 17 1266 ) 1283

31 December 2017

All depreciation charges are included withun Tleprecianion and amordzanon of non-financial assets'
the Statement of profit or luss and other comprchensive income.
The Company has no arerafts and engines pledged as security for its borrowings as of 31 December

2018

As of 31 December 2018, there were no material contractual commitments, related to acquisinon of

ttems of awrcrafts and engmes, which are expected to be repaid dunng the next reporting pertod
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7 fuvestment properey

Investment property of the Company mcludes service buldings, which arce located in the area of Sofia
arrport and are owned for investment purposes only. The far value of investment propernes at the end
of cacl repurang pernod s a reasonable approvunauon of thar far value. This assessment of the
management i~ based on the appratsal by heensed apprassers and subsequent varker rescarch and
consullations both with an mternal expert and an external mdt‘pcndcnt appraiscr Infoumation on
determmng the fan value of i estment property s presented in Nore 33 2

The carrying value of the investment properties 1s presented 1 the statement of financial position as

follows:
Investment property
BGN*“000
Carrying amount as at 1 January 2017 471
Carrying amount as at 31 December 2017 471
Written off investment property m respect of the sale (65)
Carrying amount as at 31 December 2018 406

The revenue from rental tnvestment property amwount to BGN 201 thouwsand (2017, BGN
201 thousand), mcluded withm ‘Renral mcome’ m *Other income” 1n the Statement of profi or loss and
other comprehenave meome The ditect operaung expenses amount to BGN 3 thousand (2017 BGN
3 thousand) are related to garbage fees accounted on behalf of the lessee o contngent rents have been
recogmzed

The Company has not pledged as secunty for 1ts borrowmgs mvestment property
8 Inmtangible assets
Tntangible assets of the Company include acquired software licenses, licenses and ceruficates, nght of

ownership and expenditures on acquisition of intangible assets. The carrying amounts for the reporting
pertods can be analysed as follows:

Software  Licenses Right of Expenditures Total
ownership on acquisition

BGN000 BGN00 BGN‘000 BGN‘000 BGN‘000
Gross carrying amount
Balance at | January 2018 3122 1335 127 121 424 132 002
Addinons, separately acquired - - - 17 17
Disposals (1) - - - (N
Reclassified to property, plant
and equipment - - - {424) (424)
Internal transfer of assets 11 6 - {17 -
Balance at 31 December 2018 3132 1341 127 121 - 131 594
Amottization
Balance at 1 january 20184 (3075) (1 329) (12 6445 - (17 048)
SAmaortisanoen (26 (2) (4 235) - (4 263)
Balance at 31 December 2018 (3 101) (1.331) (16 879) - (21 311)

Carrying amount at
31 December 2018 31 10 110 242 - 110 283
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Gross carrying amount
Balance at 1 January 2017
Additions, separately acquared
Disposals

Reclassified to property, plant
and equipment

Balance at 31 December 2017

Amortization

Balance at 1 January 2017
Amortization

vmortizaton of disposals
Balance at 31 Decemnber 2017

Carrying amount at
31 December 2017

41

Software Licenses Right of Expenditures Total
ownership on acquisition

BGN“000 BGN000 BGN000 BGN‘000 BGN‘000

3074 1 335 127 121 - 131 5330

- - - 172 472

48 - - (18) -

3122 1335 127 121 424 132 002

(3 044) (1327 (8 305) - (276

(31) (2) (+239) - +272)

(3 075) (1329) (12 644) - (17 048)

47 o 114 477 424 114 954

AL amornranon charges are included 1in the Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

mneotne within “Deprecanoen and amornzanen of non-financial assets™.

No miangible assets have been pledged as secunty for Labiities.

Company’s nights onginated as part of the consolidaton of Group’s avianon business segiment,

During the annual tnpatrinent test, the Company defined value i use based on the future cashflows

for each cash-gencranng urue. These caleulations are based on sipmficant management’s judgements
£ £ &

Ofl Varous estunates, assumptions and furure events, Actual results may vary and therefore

adjustments may arsse in Company’s assers dunng the future reporung periods.

Significant sofoware produces are related to Flight planning and management system (Netline),
Awrcrafr load management svstem  (Cumadeus Altea Inventory), Revemue management system
{(.Amadeus Revenue Management), Reservation system (Amadeus Reservatnon).

9 imvestments in subsidiarices

The Company has an tnvestment m a subsidiary Bulgarta Aur Technique FOOD, which s incorporated
m Republic of Bulgara. The mam actvity of Bulgana \ir Techmque EQOD 15 mamtenance and repair

of arrcrafts

Name of the subsidiary

Bulgaria \in Techmque OO

2018 share 2017 share
BGIN“060 % BGN*000 %%
201} 100 200 1600

200 200

The subsidiarics arc recogmzed 1n the Company’s financial statements at cost

Puring 2018 and 2017 the Company recerved no dividends from s subsicdhary
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The Company has not incurred any contngent habilities or other commitments relating (o tts investment

mn subsidiary.
16 inancral assets w Lar s due dhirough other comprehensive mmcome

Amounts recognized 1 the financial statement are attabutable to the following categones of financial

asscts.
2018 2017
BGN*600 BGN00
Tong-term financial assets measured at fair value through 18 000 -
other comprehensive mcome
short-term financial assets available for sale - 18 00U

In 2016, the Company acquures the shares of a foreign legal entity but without the voung rights 1 order
to exercise control over the management of the company's business. Bulgaria \ir AD has no rights on
the return from the invesunent and e 1s classafied as a financial asset avatlable for sale 11 accordance wath
A3 39 Aequred shares are denominated in BGN and are not traded on a public stock exchange. In
connectton with the transitton to [FRS 9, the Company, with the assistance of an external expert, has
assessed the tar value of 1ts equuty mnterestin the foreygn legal ennty. The results show that the fair value
15 very close approximanon of the carrving amount of the investment at 31 December 2017, which 1s

108 RCQUISIHON COSL.
11 Deferted tay gosets

Deferred taxes ansmy from temporary differences can be summanyzed as follows

Deferred tax asserts 1January Recognized Recognized A
2018 in profit and in other  December
loss comprehensi 2018
ve income
BGN000 BGN‘000 BGIN*000 BGN*000

Non-current assets
Non-current tangible and intangible

assets (324 63 - (261)

Current assets

Trade recervables (4 + - (37)

Non-current liabilities

Trade pavables (53) (2 - (73}

Pension emplovee obligatons

Current liabilities (1 (68} - (a9

Trade pavables (31) 11 1 (19)

Pension emplovee obligations (128) 5 - (123}

Orher emplovee oblgatons (2 202) (708) - (3 0oV}

TVax loss {324 63 - (261
(2 980) (773) 1 3752)

Recognized as

Deferred tax assets (2 980) (3 752)
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Deferred taxes for the penod ending 31 December 2017 are presented as follows:

Defetred tax liabilities /(assets) 1Januwary  Recognized Recognized 31
2017  in profit and in other December
loss comprehensi 2017
ve income
BGIN000 BGN*000 BGN*000 BGN*000

Non-current assets
Non-current tangtble and meangible

assets 400y 76 - (324

Current assets

T'rade recevables (62) 21 - (41)

Non-curtent liabilities

Trade pavables {(483) 483 - -

Pension emplovee obligations 54 1 - (33)

Current liabilities

Trade pavables (116) 5 - (111)

Pension emplovee obligatons (22 (3) (6) 31)

Other emplovee obliganons (113 (15) - (128)

Tax losses - (2202 - (2 2097}
(1250) (1724 {6) (2 980)

Recognized as

Deferred tax assets (1250) (2 980)

Al deferred taxes are recorded wsing the Labihey method using current tax rate of 10%0, that rate 1s
expected to be applicable at the ame of the reversal of deferred taxes. Note 31 provides addmonal
mformanon concerning the tax expense of the Company.

12 Ancraft spare parts

The sparc parts for airplanes worth BGN 5 300 thousand (2017 BGN 5 138 thousand) mnclude ururs,
blocks, signalling devices, collectors, evlinders, compensators, sensors, contactors and the like

After annual review of the mventones’ net realizable value, including areraft spare parts, and based on
the external and nternal sources of mformation, the Company’s management considers that there are no
facts and circumstances, which mdicate that the inventories’ cost exceed their net realizable value. This
judgment 15 based on the analysis of fluctuations in selling prices of inventories having a stmilar purposc.
None of the aircraft spare parts are pledged as secunties for habihues.

13 imventories

2018 2017

BGN*000 BGN*“000

Goods 289 337
Catering utenstls 89 90
Catering other 36 59
\irplane fuel 46 42
f'uel and lubricant materials 14 21
Other 30 56

524 605
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As at 31 December 2018 the Company did not wdentify mndicatons for umpairment of the mventories
from external or ternal sources of mnformation Thetefore, no mmpaument loss of wventories 15
reported When deternuning net sales price of the inventories, management uses the most rehiable

informanon avaslable as at the estimatuon.
As at 31 December 2018 goods amounting o BGN 286 thousand {2017: BGN 330 thousand) are pledged
as collateral according to a loan granted by Texim bank AD.

14 Trade recervables

2017 2016

BGN“000 BGN“000

Trade tecewvables, gross 11418 11 768
Impatment (306) (409
Trade recervables, net 11 052 11 359

All trade recervables are short-term T'he carrving amount of trade receivables 15 considered a reasonable

approxunaucn of fair value,
Al rade recetvables of the Company have been reviewed for events of default and for all trade
recervables a sumplified approach has been apphed to detcrmine the expected credit losses at the end of

the pertod There are no indicatons of recogmuon of unpairment

T'he movement mn the allowance for impatrment losses can be reconciled as follows:

2018 2017
BGN*“000 BGN*‘“000
Balance at 1 January 409 620
Imparment loss - 9
Amounts wrtten-off {uncollecuble) CS) (220
Balance at 31 December 366 409
The most sigmuficant trade recetvables as at 31 December are presented below:
2018 2017
BGN“000 BGN“000
Financral assets: 9 528 10 408
Recervables from sales of airplane tickets by representative offices
and BSP agents abroad 3931 3042
Drrect sales of auplane nckets i the country and abroad 1479 1646
Charter flights recervables 558 393
Recernvables on operating lease of auplanes 291 -
Sales of cargo and maid 162 231
Oither trade recervables 3087 4 196
Non-financial assets: 1524 951
Advances for purchasing of spare parts 1231 465
Vdvances for landing and mamtenance of arplanes 238 285
Advances for aeplane fuel 35 201

11 052 11 359
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Trade recervables are due within 60 days and do not contain effectve interest rate All rrade recervables
are subject to credit nsk, although, for significant part of them the nisk 1s not high.

As a member of the International \ur Transport Associaton (TATA), the Company operates a system of
payments between agents and adines - Billing and Settlement Plan (BSP) This 1s a centralized system
designed to ensure the flow of informanon and resources between agents and tour operators and atrlines.

The system 15 mameamed by TAVTAL

Recavables from sales of airplane tickets by travel agents and collected from TAT.A through BST occur
1 connection with ticket sales by the agents and representatives on the territory of the respective country
Pavment tenm has not been come as at the date of financial statements.

Company’s management does not identify specific credit nsk as trade recervables consist of large number
of mdividual customers.

15 Otler teceis ables

2018 2017

BGN*“000 BGN000

Financial Assets: 58 338 70 575
\warded and court recervables 59 48 39 648
Guarantees 2340 2338
loans granted 485 -
Oither 9197 8 764
Impatrment (13 432) (373)
Non-financial Assets: 10 086 9 707
Prepaid expenses 10 080 970
Fxetse duty recovery 3 3
Ovther 3 3
68 424 80 282

The Company's other financial recetvables are reviewed for events of default and a simplified approach
1s used to determine the expected credit losses at the end of the pertod. Some recervables were impaired
on an mdividual basis and the corresponding impairment of BGN 9 498 thousand (2017 BGN U) was
recogmzed 1w the profit or loss and other comprehensive income under "Other expenses” Impatred
recervables are from counterpartics wath which the Company has ocutstanding lawsuts.

The movement m the allowance for impatrment losses can be reconciled as follows

2018 2017

BGN*‘000 BGN“O00

Balance at 1 January 375 369
Inttial effect from [FRS 9 3559 -
Tmparment loss . ) 9498 ]
Balance at 31 December 13 432 375

Prepatd expenses, amounting to BGN 10 080 thousand (2017 BGN 9 701 thousand), mamly represent
usurances for arerafts and mstalments for mamtenance and repatrment of arerafts (mamtenance

reserve)
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Other recervables at the amount of BGN 9 197 thousand (2017 BGN 8 764 thousand) represent
recetvahles on re-invorced expenses, staff recetvables due to shortages and catening detictencies and other

16 Cash and cash cquivalents
Cash and cash equvalents include the following components:

2018 2017
BGN“000 BGN‘000

(Cash at banks 825 661
(Cash 1 hand 86 8"
Restricted cash 14 200 14 493

15 111 15241

Substanual portuon of restncted cash m o the amouant of BGN 12 248 thousand 20017, BGN 12 619
thousand; denommared in U dollaes, copresenting guuantee on operating leases of atreratt that expre
m subsequent reportng penods The rest of restricted cash hedd as collateral for issued letter of credit
and bank guarantees
\nalvsts of the cash and cash equivalents, excluding restncted cash, by cunency type 15 presented as
follows
2018 2017
BGIN‘000 BGIN‘“000

Cash at 1n hand and 1n bank accounts

- Furao 425 300
- Us dollars 101 40
- Lebanon dinar 150 149
- Bulganan leva 158 79
- Russuan rubble 29 43
- Brntsh pound 25 93
- Other 23 44
Cash at 1n hand and in bank accounts. 911 748
- s dollars 13 965 14 248
- Luro 235 245
Resntcted cash. 14 200 14 493
Total Cash and cash equivalents 15111 15 241

The total value of the blocked cash that s used to secure trade obligations or habilities under recerved
bank loans amounts to [-UR 92 thousand and USD 1 074 thousand.

The Company has assessed the expected credit losses on cash and cash equivalents
The esdmated value 1s less than 0 170 of the gross amount of cash depostted with financial tnstitutions,

which 1s why 1t 15 determuned to be insigmficant and has not been accounted for 1n the financial
statements of the Company.
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i7.1  Sharc caprtal

47

Share capital of the Company amounts o BGN 120 000 thousand and consists of 120 000 shares wich
par value of BGN 1 000 each All shares are equally eligible to receive dividends and the repayment of
captial and represent one vote ar the shareholders’ meeting of the Company. The capual 15 fullv paid by
the sharcholder Bulganan Airwayvs Group EAD. Dunng both reporting periods no shares have been

tssued or revoked

§7.2  Resenves

Company’s reserves are as follows

Balance as ac 1 January 2017

Remeasurement of defined
benefit obligauons

Tax imcome

Other comprehensive loss for
the pentod after taxes
Addinonal capsial contnbutions
Balance as at 31 December
2017

Balance as at 1 January 2013
Remeasurement of defined
benefit obhgations

Tax expense

Orther comprehensive income
for the period after taxes
Addintoaal capteal conertbutions
Balance as at 31 December
2018

Common Other Reserves Reserve Total
reserves reserves for capital from
increase remeasuteimn
ents of
defined
benefit
obligations
BGN“00 BGN“00 BGN“900 BGN000 BGIN*00
0
317 642 766 562 2287
- - - (35) (35)
- - - O G
- - - (49) (49)
- - 61414 - 61 414
317 642 62 180 513 63 652
Common Other Reserves Reserve Total
reserves reserves for from
capital remeasurem
increase ents of
defined
benefit
obligations
BGN“00 BGNO00 BGN00 BGN“000 BGN*000
317 642 62 180 513 63 652
- - - 8 8
- - - W (1)
_ - - 7 7
317 642 62 180 520 63 659
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Common reserves amounting to BGN 317 thousand, and other reserves, amountng 1o BGN 642
thousand, are formed using parts of retained earmngs in accordance with the Commercial Act acung,

The reserves for capital merease at the amount of BGN 62 180 thousand (2017 BGN 62 180 thousand)
represent contributions for capital increase made by the major sharcholde

8

Borrowings

Borrowmgs mclude the following financial habslines, measured at amortized cost.

Short-term Long-term
2018 2017 2018 2017
BGN*000 BGN“000 BGIN‘000 BGN“000
Bank leans 11 454 76N 475 810
Tiade loans 406 931 - -
Total carrying amounts 11 860 8 621 475 210

Company’s borrowings can be analvsed as follows:
Bank loans

As ar 31 December 2018 the Company has acuve contracts on bank loans as follows

Contract for bank loan for provision of workmg capital wath maturity date 1 of February, 2021

The principal on the loan as at 31 12.2018 amounts to BGXN 810 thousand, BGN 475 thousand
of wluch represents long-term part and BGN 335 BGN thousand short-term. The annual mterest
tate represents the Bank's basis mnterest rate plus a spread of 1 7% and 1t is due to the unhzed
portton of the loan. The loan 1s secured by a special pledge contract of thurd party recervables’
under rent connact for "Flanger with Lightweight Constructon (FILC)" and connecting corndor,
located in Sofia, Slatina, Sofia Awrport

Contract for bank overdraft concluded on Ist of August, 2018 for working capital with a
repavment term 20th of August, 2021, The princpal outstanding on the loan as at 31st of
December, 2018 18 BGN 1,800 thousand The annual mnterest rate 1s equal to the Basis Interest
Rate of the Bank plus a spread of 1 ™0 The loan 15 secured by pledge of recetvables on current
accounts with the creditor bank and spectal pledge on goods intended for duty-free foreign
exchange trading on aireraft and/or in speaialized stores with carrving amount as at 31st December
2018 of 286 thousand BGN

3 contracts for bank loans for working capttal with a maturity date of 31+ NMay of 2019, 31+
October of 20022 and 31+ January of 2021 The annual interest rate on loans is 3% + 30 Eunbor,
but not less than 4%¢ The principal outstanding on bank loans as at 31 December 2018 amounted
to BGN 9 319 thousand. The loans were secured by pledgimg of recevables under public
procurement contracts for the provision of fhight nckets, BSP inflows receivables, recetvables
under contracts of third partes, as well as contract for guarantee signed with Clanmumport AD.
One of the loans cosignor 15 Bulganan Atrways Group LAD.

Trade loans
As of December 31, 2018, the Company has outstanding habihities at the amount of BGN 407
thousand under a commercaal loan contract. The loan pancipal was repaid 1n 2016,

s 1

Recoucthation of pavables, arising fiom financial acuvity

Changes m the Company's halahities ansing from a financial activity may be classified as follows:



BULGARTA ATR AD
Financial Statements

31

19

Diecember 2018

49

Short-term
Long-term Short-tcrm {oans from
loans loans related parties Total
BGN*000 BGN‘000 BGN*000 BGIN“000
1 January 2018 810 8621 6 535 15 966
Cash flows
Principal pavments (5912 (5 955) (11 867
Interest payments (32 (488) (256) 76)
Recerpts - 15710 7857 23 567
(32) 9 310 1646 10 924
Non-moenetany changes
Interest acerued 32 470 319 821
Reclassthication (335) 335 6179 6179
Offerting ot recenvables and
pavables - 6876) {6 876)
(303) {6 071) 6 498 24
31 December 2018 475 11 860 14 679 27014
Short-term
Long-term Short-term loans from
loans loans related partics Total
BGN*“000 BGN*“000 BGN“000 BGN“000
1 January 2017 1145 4 361 21685 27 191
Cash tlows
Principal pay muenes - 5202 (1507 6707
Intciesr pavments 270 31 581
Recemts 10 050 10 943 20 993
- 4578 9125 13 703
Non-monerary changes
[ntarest acciued - 254 299 533
Reclassificanon (3335) 400 (22 590) (22 5255
Ofsernng of 1ecenvables and
pay ablcs (952) (1 984) 2 936)
(335) (318) (24 275) (24 928)
31 December 2017 810 8 621 6 535 15 966
Emplovee remuneratuon
19.1  Emplosce benefits expense
Expenses recognized for emplovee benefits include
2018 2017
BGIN‘000 BGIN‘000
Wagcs, salares (12 392) {11 995)
Socal securnty costs (2 130) (2 029
Compensations 1 compliance with Labour Code (243) (275)
Penston provisions (71) (1
Unused compensated leaves 55 (134)
(14 781) (14 450)

.

Pension and ather cmplovee obhgations

The habdines for pension and other emplovee obhgauons recogniszed 1n the statement of financial

posttion constst of the followmyg amounts
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2018 2017
BGIN*000 BGN000
Long — term
Pension provisions 728 512
T.ong-term pensions 728 512
Short-term
Wages 1 413 1 094
Unused compensated leaves 1 078 P133
Sacral security expenscs 643 871
Shorr-term pension provistons 194 331
Short-term pension and other emplovee obhgations 3 328 3429

The current poruon of these habilitics represents the Company's obligations to 1ts current and former
emplovees that are expected to be setded dunng 2018

T accordance with the requirements of the Labour Code when ternunanng employment after the
emptovee has become entuded to retirement penston, the Company 1s obliged to pay lmn a compensation
AMOGUNUNE [0 U 51X ZrOss Wages.

The Company has accrued penston provistons for 1ts cmplovees based on the requirements set forth by
T\S 19 Employvee benefits and Tabour Code acting in Bulganta The provision 1s estunated by mnternal
actuary and 1t considers factors such as pension age for the appropriate category employees, wages and
salarv pavment for the approprate category emplovees as at 31 December 2018, expected number of
veats to pension age and other.

The movement in the penston provisions set forth by the Labour Code, can be reconciled as follows:

2018 2017

BGN*000 BGN000

Provision for retrement at the begtnning of the period 843 755
Increase mn pension provistons due to tetirement age occurrence 95 146
Discount 16 15
Compensation pad to personnel (32) (73}
922 843

Penston tetirement provistons are acerued on the assumption dhat personnel 15 to retire within the
Company Depending on the marunty peniod of the pension retitement provisions, they are disclosed as
short-term (within 1 vear) and long-term portion {over | vear)

Defined benefit obligations of the Company can be reconcided with the amounts presented in the
statement of financial positon for each of the reporting perieds as follows

2018 2017

BGIN*000 BGN*000

Defined henefit obligattons at 1 January 843 755
Current service cost 103 S0
Interest cost 16 15
\cruartal (gatns)/losses (%) 56
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2018 2017

BGN*000 BGIN‘000

Benetits pad (32) (C3)
Defined benefit obligations at 31 December 922 843

The following actuanal assumptions were used when pension obligation was caleulated:

2018 2017
Discount rate 200% 2.00°,
Fxpeeted rate of salary mereases 1.00%% 1 00%o
Rerirement age for men (vears) 04 64
Retirement age for wotmen {(vears) 61 61
Average expected rematiing vears to personnel reticement 25 25

These assumpuons were des eloped by management under consideration of expert advice provided by
ndepeadent actuanal appraiser. These assumptions have led o the amounts deterrmined as the
Company's defined benefic obligattons for the reporting penods under review and should be regarded as
management's best estmmare Hawever, the actual outcome may vary.

The total amount of the expenses under defined benefits plans of the Company, which 1s recogmzed in
the profit or loss, ean be summartsed as follows.

2018 2017

BGN“Q00 BGNO00

Cutrent service cost 103 90
Tnterest cost _lo 15
Toral expenses, recognized in the profit or loss 119 105

Current service cost 15 icluded 1 ‘Emplovee benefits expenses”. The mterest cost 15 included in the
Statement of profit or loss and other comprchensive meome within ‘Financial costs’ (sce Note 30).

The total amount of the expenses under defined benefits plans of the Company, recognized in the other
comprehensive mncome, can be summartzed as follows:

2018 2017
BGN*“000 BGN‘000
Actuanal (gains)/loss due to changes in demographic
assumptions (8) 55
Total expenses, recognized in other comprehensive
income (8) 55

Based on the Company’s past expertence the payments under the defined benefits plans for 2019 are
expected to be BGN 194 thousand.

The waghted average duration of the obligation of payments of defined benefits as at 31 December 2018
18 5 vears (2017, 5 vears)

The sigmficant actuanal gssumptions for the determinavon of the defined benefit obliganon are the
discount rate, the salary growth rare and the average life expectancy The caleulation of the net defined
benefit lability 15 sensttve ro these assumpnons. The followang table summarizes the sensitivaty analysis
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and the cffects of changes in these actuanal assumptions on the defined benefit bability at 31 December
2018

Changes in the significant actuarial assumptions Increase by Dectease by
Discount rare 0.25% 0.25%
Increase / (decrease) i the defined benefit habibiy (BGN
00N (13 12
Salary growth rate 1% 1%
Tncrease / (decrease) m the defined benefit hability (BGN
D) 56 (B1)
Average life expectancies 1 year 1year
Increase ' {decrease) in the defined benefit habiity (BGN
REV)] 5 4
Turnover (*}) of employees 1% 1%
Increase  {decrease) m the defined benefit habihoe (BGN
‘00 {501} 16

The sensiovity analvsis 13 based on a change of a sigle assumption. Tt could differ from the actual change
1 the defined benefit obliganons due to the fact that changes th assumptions are often mnterrelated.

20 Trade payables

2018 2017
BGIN“000 BGN000
Long - term
Trade pavables 114 32783
Total long -term trade pavables 8 114 32 783
Short - term
T'rade and other payables 64 189 55 880
Advances recerved 503 1526
Total short -1erm trade payables 64 692 57 406
Total trade payables 72 806 90 189

Long-term trade payables amounung to BGN 8 114 thousand (2017: BGN 32 783 thousand) are related
to an agreement for rescheduling the trade payables for atrport charges as well as payables related to
landing and service Vs ar the date of the financial statements, part of these payables have been scttled.
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Mose signuficant short-term trade pavables as 1o 31 December are as follows:

2018 2017

BGN000 BGN*000

PPavables related 1o landing and maintenance of arcrafts 34 707 27706
Operating lease of airplanes pavables 7067 T 637
Aurplane fuel payables 5 652 1 660
Oither services pavables 6274 56106
A gavigation services labilites 5455 5093
Sparc parts supplies 1 687 1 650
Catering, supplies and services 7B 819
Advances paid by customers for uckets sale 303 1526
Other trade payables 2569 2693
64 692 57 406

The far values for short-term trade and other pavables are not presented, since those pavables are
current, and therr carrving value presented m the Statement of finanaal positon, 15 considered a
reasonable approximation of the far value

21 Provisione

lo mect the Lequurements set forth by the Dircenve 2008/101/FC of the European Parhament and of
the Counetd, the Company as an avtanon operator, s required to allocate allowances to reduce the
cnvironmental impct of aviation acovioes.

The Compan's obhganon 1o purchase greenhouse gas emisston allowances withen the Commumity m
the Smgle Furopean Greenhouse Gas Fmissions Trading Scheme (ETS) amounts ro BGN 1 534
thowsand as ar 31 December 2018

To meetits obligations tor 2018 unnl 30 April 2019, the Company must obtate addinonal 40 021 numbes
ot allowances for carbon emiesions amountng to BGN 1534 thousand This amount 15 calculated based
on stock mdices trading warh stnular quotas as of the repornng date This assessment of the management
s supporred by Annual report for preenhouse gas emasstons and ton-kidometres dara for 2018, ventfied
by an aceredied expern.

The carrving amousit of the provision for the tssue of quotas for greenhouse gases can be presenred as
tollows

2018 2017
BGIN'000 BGN*000

Short-term
Carrying amount as at 1 January 840 366
Acctued ptovisions 1534 8B40
\mounts utilized {840y (560)

Carrving amount as at 31 December 1534 840
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22 (ubier Habslaties

2018 2017

BGN“000 BGN“000

Tickers sold 15 834 14 920
Guarantees from ockess sales agents and other similar 1 806 1 950
Deferred mcome 160 392
Tax habihiaes other than income tax habiites 45 214
Orther 22 59
18 167 17 535

Payvables regarding tickets sold, amounung to BGN 15 834 thousand (2017 BGN 14 920 thousand},
represent passenger tickets sold for which the performance of the service has vet not occurred as at the
reporung date of the bnanaial statements Under the new TFRS 15, these amounts are tteated as a contract
labthty

Deferred income at the amount of BGN 45 thousand (2017 BGN 214 thousand), 1s related to the
prepad amounts according to operanng lease agreements for atrcraft and prepaid charter fhights.

23 Traffic revenue

Thaffic revenue as well as the accompanying acuvinies that are recogmzed over nme are as follows

2018 2017

BGIN“G00 BGIN‘00D

Internauonal scheduled flights 150 358 152 748
Internattonal charter ighes T2 8232 063 894
Domeste scheduled fhghts 14197 12720
Income from tckets and taxes wich expired validiey 3352 8485
Tickert tssuance charges 1 483 1430
242 212 239 277

T1affic revenue mcludes the provision of mternanonal and domestuc scheduled flights, internanonal
charter flights and other flight-related services The company transfers control over the services over
ame and therefore sansfies the obligaton o exccute and recognizes revenue over tme Traffic revenue
15 recogrised after the actual fhght has occurred

The 1raffic costs may be defined as a fixed remuneration The atrplanc ucket mcludes-

- the price of the ttansportanon - both the passenger and different luggage depending on the applicable
fare, on-board food, msurance

- arrport taNes,

- tuel charge.

Miocaton of the transaction price to the performance obligations 15 made on the basts of unir sales
prices The Company measures 1ts progress towards a full settlement of the performance obligation,
satisticd over time by confirming the occurrence of the flight
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Revenue from mnternational scheduled flights of the airhine s generated on the following lines:

Route 2018 2017
BGN ‘000 BGN “000

Sofia — Amsrerdam — Sofia 18 555 17122
Sofia - Pans — Sofia 15976 15550
Sofia — Brussels — Sofia 15928 12511
Sofin — London — Sofia 12919 10018
Sofia - Madnd — Sofia 8012 9336
Other mternauonal thghes 78 068 88 211

150 358 152 748

The charter flights take place mainly berween June - September. Tn 2018, charter flights to Israel and
Russia accounted for 690 of the acuviry revenue, with the share of charter thghts to Russia bemng 51%
or BGN 36 807 thousand and 18" s for Tsracl or 12 830} thousand followed by the charters to Poland with
#' partcpaton and Turtkev with 5% pattctpation, respectively  Other counmes with a lower
contrtbution to reveaue ate Greeee, Moroceo, Span, Feypt and other Enropean countrics

Charter destination 2018 2017
BGN “000 BGN 000

Tarael 12 830 11730
Russia 36 86 351106
Poland 6 082 705
Turkey 3760 3011
Cirecce 1 649 1 383
Span 1339 1015
COrther 10275 10 844

72 822 63 894

Domesne scheduled fhghts generate revenues on the Sofia-Varna-Sofia, Sofia-Varna-Burgas and Sofia-
Burgas-Sofia lines

Route 2018 2017

BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
Sofia — Vama - Sofia 12515 10 507
sofia — Burgas - Sofia 1082 1 550
Softa — Vama — Burgas — Sofia 600 663

14 197 12 720
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As of 310 December 2018 the Company has reported balances on the contracts with customers as

folliws:

2018 2017
BGN ‘000 BGN “000

Receivables from contracts with customers
Trade recervables (Notel4) 11 052 11 359
Related parties recervables (Norte 33 1) 1 280 634

Contract liabilities
Performance obligatons m respect of non-scheduled tickets for

scheduled flights (Note 22 Other habihues) (15 834 (149200
Implementanon obligauons i relanon to prepad charging for
charter flights {27 (192)
Performance obligations 1in relanon to prepaid remuneracon for
other services (18) (22
Parment Obligatnon (Note 20 T'rade payables) (503) (1 526)

24 Other imcome

As other revenue, the arhine classifies all revenue other than traffic revenuc Thev anse cither under
contracts with customers, including leasc contracts for atreraft and other assets, and under contracts and
rransactons that are outstde the scope of IFRS 15 and TAS 17

2018 2017

BGN*000 BGN“000
Revenue from contracts with customers in accordance with
IFRS 15
Fines and penalues 5 085 1353
Revenue from sale of goods 1176 1 351
Revenue from sate of matenals 142 304
Commissions 672 686
Revenue from advertising 679 634
Consultancy, techmcal, telecommurneation and transport services 111 196
Other 2 981 3012
Rental income under 1AS 17 -
AMircraft leases 8 706 12544
Other rent 922 824
Other income outside the scope of [FRS 15 and 1AS 17
Revenue from court cases 22985 -
Reversed maintenance reserve 3262 2625
Written-off habtlities to suppliers 1101 8 508
Tnsurance clams 19 75
Inconme from cesstomns - 3256

47 871 38 368
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Revenue recognived under coneracts with clients 1n accordance with TFRS 15 1n respect of the recogmuon
date 15 as follows

2018 2017
BGNY0G0 BGN00
Revenue recognized over time

Fines and penaltes 5085 4353
Revenue from advertising 679 634
Commussions 672 686

Consultancy. rechmical, telecommunicanon and transport
SCLVICES 111 190
Oither 2 981 3012
Revenue recognized at a point in time -
Revemmue from sale of goods 1176 1351
Revenue from <ale of marerials 142 304
10 846 10 536

Revenue from fines and penalies amountmyg to BGN 5 085 thousand (2017 BGN 4 353 thousand) 1s
related to defaults on the contractual temms on behalf of the Company’s customers. They include
cancelanon flight fees, fees for fathing to comply with deadlines, prorate for baggage of carrying
passengers, additional compensattons related to defaults of operating lease contracts for rental of atrcrafts

and cic

Revenue from awrcraft rent at the amount of BGN 8 706 thousand (2017 BGN 12 544 thousand) 1s
related to lease agreements (sub-leasing) with two other audines abroad  \rcrafis are wet leased (with

crew}

23 Gam own sale of non-catrene assets

2018 2017

BGIN‘000 BGN*‘000

Proceeds from sale of non-current assets 170 2

Carrying atnount of non-current assets sold {63) (1)

Loss from sale of non-current assets 105 1

26 Hired service oxpenses

2018 2017
BGN*'000 BGN*000
Operatng lease and mamntenance expenses (61 563) (69 693)
Landing and mamtenance charges — local and mternational (47 182) (48 073)
Overflight fees — local and inteinational (20771 (22481
Rescervaton system (10 103) (10 324)
Mamtenance, repair and technical services expenses (8094 (7 688)
Block seat expenses {4+ 298) (4 3606)
Commission expense (3 742) (4 344)
T.ease of prenuses and other leases (2 934) (+763)
Catening (2 663) (2 86Y9)

Insurances (1 243) (1 387)
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\dverusing expenses

Leasc of engines and spare parts
Consultancy, audit and legal services
Other

58

2018 2017
BGIN‘000 BGN*000
(1 130) (1 301)
(976) (628)
(262) (158)

(5 868) (6 127)
(171 475) (184 202)

Orther hired services expenses, amountng to BGN 5 868 thousand (20017 BGN 6 127 thousand) are
related to subsenpuons, raxes and fees, transport services, traimg, crew accommodation expunses,

pl‘ll]tl['lg and other services

27 Cost ofmaterrals

Aurcraft fuel
Aarcraft spare parts
(thers

2018 2017
BGN*000 BGN*000
("1 338) (38 179)
(4 932) (5 360)

(2 981) (2719)
(79 251) (66 264)

Other cost of matenals at the amount of BGN 2 981 thousand (2017 BGXN 2 719 thousand) includes
expenses for clectnairy, uniforms, office matenals, utensils, consumable materals, anu-ice, technical

documentanon and others

258  Other expenses

Impatrment of trade and other recervables

Business trips

Ronuns, riegulariy and fines

Accruals on provision for greenhouse gas emissions allowances
Cost of goods sold

Re-debits

Bonuses

Tax expenscs

Other

2018 2017
BGN*000 BGN000
(© 498) (9
(5 319) (5 346)
(2 645) (3 033)
(1 823) (872)
(793) (879)
(274) (200)
(257) (104)

{5) (18)
(389) (257)
(21 005) (10 718)
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2% lLease

291 Operanng leases as lessee

The Company 15 a lessec according to operating lease agrecements of atrcrafts The future minmmum
operafing lease payments can be summanzed as follows

Within 1 year 2 to 5 years Up to 5 years Total

BGN*000 BGN’000 BGIN000 BGN’060

s at 31 December 2018 38593 109 898 12279 160 770
As at 31 December 2017 41 436 134 504 7170 182176

Leasc payments relaced to areraft and recognized as an expense for the pertod amounung to BGN
41 851 chousand (2016; BGN 48 744 thousand) are included as Operaung lease and mamntenance
expenses within [Hired setvice expenses (Note 26) This amount includes mimmum lease payments Sub-
leasing revenue s expected to be realized as Bulgana Aw \D enters mmto contracts for the lease of the
other airhine's leased awrcrafr

Informaoon on revenue carned ftom sub-leasing i 2018 15 presented 1n Note 29 2.

As at the date of the preparation of the current finanaal statements, Bulgana \ir AD 15 a lessee under
operating lease agreements for 5 aircrafts, wpe Airbus and 4 arrcrafts, rype Embraer

The Compant's operaung lease agreements do not contain any contingent rent clauses None of the
operating lease agreements contains renewal or purchase opuons or escalation clauses or any restnictions
regarding diidends, further leasing or addinonal debr.

New annexes for prolonging the lease terms and for decrease of lease payments to existing lease
agreements for 2 awrerafts, type Awrbus A-320 have been concluded 1 2017

In 2018, additonal agreements were concluded for 4 Embraer airplanes for reducnion mn the lease
pavment and for 2 \irbus .A-319 aireraft for extending the lease term and reduaing the lease payments,

The Company 1+ a lessee according to operating lease agrecments of premises. The future minimum
operating lease payments can be summanzed as follows:

Within 1 year 2 to 5 years Total

BGN'000 BGN’000 BGN'000

As at 31 December 2018 667 1 950 2617
As at 31 December 2017 5380 2504 3174

Lease payments related to premises and recognized as an expense for the period amounted wo BGN
714 thousand (2017, BGN 1 732 thousand) are meluded as Lease of premuses and other leases within
Hired service expenses (Note 26) This amount mncludes rummum lease pavments.

Sub-leasing receipts are recenved by tlurd parues under the sub-lease agreements of part of the leased
premises Information on revenue carned from sub-leasing in 2018 15 presented 1n Note 29 2

The Company's operamng lease agreements do not contain any contngent rent clavses None of the
operating lease agreements contams renewal or purchase options or escalation clauses or any restrictions
regarding drvidends, further leasing or addinonal debt
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292 Operatiung leases as lessor

In 2018 as a lessce Bulgaria Atr AD rent awcrafts to other mirlines under the terms of operating lease.
Revenue recognized from leasing of arerafts m 2018 amounts to BGN 8 706 thousand (2016, BGN
12 344 thousand).

\s at the date of preparation of these financial statements, Bulgaria Air 15 a lessor under short-term
congracts for operaung lease of arcrafts

The Company has concluded sub-lease agreements for premisces that are hired by 1t. In 11s capacity of
landloid, the Company has realized rental income amouatng to BGN 852 thousand (2017 BGN 798
thousand), presented as Other renrs within Other tncome (Note 24). The Company leases investment
properey under operating leases. Detailed informaton 1s provided in note 7

30 Finance vost and finance income

Fmance costs for the presented reporting penod can be analysed as follows

2018 2017
BGN 000 BGN*000
Tnterest expenses for financal labilines carned ar amortived cost
- bortowings (821) (534)
- taterest on late payments to supphers ("4 (1 573)
Total interest expenses for financial liabilities carried at
amortized cost (1595) (2107)
Interest on tax labtlites and legal clams (% (573)
Tuterest expenses on defined benefit obligatons (1M (15)
Total interest expenses (1621) (2 695)
Other finance costs
- bank fees and commissions (283) (311
- currency exchange rate losses (5 239) (6 085)
- expense from transactions with financtal asscts measured
at fair value through profit or loss - (14
Finance costs (7 143) (9 105)
Finance mcome for the presented reporting period can be analysed as follows
2018 2017
BGN*“000 BGN*“000
Interest income on fnanctal assers carned at amonzed cost
mcluding:
- loans granted 10 -
Total interest income on financial assets carried at amortized
cost 10 -
Curiency exchange rate gains 5143 4 816
Ficome from aperations with iy estiments - 11
Oiher finance income 1 1

Finance income 5154 4 828
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3t Income Lax expense/mcome

The relanonship between the expected tax expense based on the apphcable tax rare 10 Bulgaria of 10 %%
{2017 10 %} and the reported tax expense actually 1 the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehenstye income can be reconciled as follows.

2018 2017
BGN*“000 BGN000
Loss for the vear before tax (+ 283) (8 280)
Tax rate 10%0 10%0
Expected tax expense - -
Tax cffeet of adjusunents for tax-exempt mcome 1271 1419
Tax effect of adjustunents for non-deductble expenses {922) (851)
Current tax income - -
Deferred tax income
Ongnanon and reversal of remporary differences 773 1724
Income tax 773 1724
Deferred tax (expense)/income recognized directly in other
comprehensive income () 6

Note 11 provides information on the deferred tax assets and labilities.

32  Related party ttansactions

Owner of 99.999%y of capatal of the Company is Bulganan Auways Group F AT Sole owner of the
capital of Bulgarian Mrwavs Group EAD 18 Chimimpere AD. The Atrline 15 part of the Chimimport

group and 1t 15 a related party to the compantes controlled by Chimimport AD

None of the related party transacuons mncorporate special terms and conditions. Provided and receved
guarantees are presented i note 35.

351 Trunsactions with owners

Transactions with owners are related to the major owner Bulgarian Arrways Group EAD

2018 2017

BGN*“000 BGIN‘000

Admintstragve-management setvices recets ed 417 480

Reclassification of trade and other pavables to debt 2617 -
A\mounts recetved under a temporary financaal contribution 2021

Transactions, related to services rendered by Bulganan Awrways Group EAD are related 1o the owners’
remuneranions for their partcpation 1n the Board of Dhrectors, as well as for management fee (holding
fee)

Bulgarma \ir entered mto a three party agreements subjecting the substttutton of mural liabiites and
then Company’s trade pavables were transformed 1nto loan obhganon due to Bulgaran Mrways Group

EAD
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322 Transactions with subsidiaries

2018 2017
BGIN00) BGNO90
Interest expeases on borrowings G 6
32,3 Transactions with other telated parties
2018 2017
BGN*000 BGIN‘000
Sales of goods and services 1392 1 080
Purchase of geods and services 23217 22089
Interest, raxes and commission expenses 574 288
Loans recerved T 857 10960
Loans 1epad 5955 3525
324 Trensactions with kev management personnel
Key management personnel iemuneration mncludes the following expenses,
2018 2017
BGN*000 BGN000
Short-term emplovee benefits.
- Wages (197 (197
- soctal securitv costs (104 {10
(207) (207)
33 Related parey balances at vear end
3301 Relared party receivables
2018 2017
BGN‘000 BGN*000
Recetvables from owners 1 1
Recervables trom other related parnes 21098 20 451
Short-term related party receivables 21099 20 452

The mam part of the recetvables from other related parties 1n the amount of BGN 19 818 thousand
(2017: BGN 19 818 thousand) arc related to a recervables ceded to Bulgana Ar, which are expected to
be settled by the end of 2019 The other part of the recervables m the amount of BGN 1 280 thousand
(2017 BGN 633 thowsand) are related 1o sales from the main actrvity - arrhine uckers, leases and other.

33.2  Related paty pavables

2018 2017
BGN“000 BGIN‘000

Current payables
Orwiters 4958 -
Subsidiaries 279 274
23 497 23 508

Crither related parues
Total current payables to telated parties 28 734

23 782




63
BULGARILY ATR AD

Financial Statements
31 December 2018

Liabilities to the major owner are mainly due 1n tespect of tnpartte contracts signed 1 2018 for the
substirution of habihities where Bulgana Asr AD trade payables at a total amount of BGXN 2 617 thousand
to other relared parties under common control trade habilites are transformed as a loan lability to
Bulgaran Mrwavs Group EAD. The rematning part equal to BGXN 320 thousand is due in connection
with ordinary commetaal transacuons

I'he payables to other related parties amountng to BGN 23 497 thousand are 1elated to:

- arport and handling service parables, technical and linear setrvices, catering and other services,
relared to the main activities amountng to BGN 13 736 thousand,

- recewved bank loans 1n the form of overdrafts for working capital needs amounting to BGIN 6
306 thousand as at 31 December 2018 (2017: BGN 6 486 thousand), which are repayable 1n
2019 The loans are concluded at markert interese rates The loans are secured by two contracts
for collateral from other related parties, as well as a pledge on all bank accounts of the Aiurhne
in the Bank — related party,

- acommercal loan from a related party - a commercial company whose size, together wath the
acerued and ourstandmg interest, amounts to BGN 1 890 thousand as ac 31 December 201 8.
The loan 1s short-term with a tepayment term tn 2019 The loan 15 not secured,

- pavable in respect of a tnparute contract signed on 3 December 2018 for the replacement of
Bulgaria \ir AD rtrade payables at a total amount of BGN 1 563 thousand to other related
paraes under common control.

34 Non-mopetan frapsactions

During 2018 and 2017 the Company has entered mro the following non-cash mvesting acuvities for
which the use of cash and cash-equivalents 15 not required.
- Transformanon of trrade pavables into commercial loans amounting to BGN 6 179 thousand
2018,
- Tacrease of the Company’s reserves by transforming habiliies to the majornty owner and
concluding 2 contract for a subordinated term debt amounting to BGN 61 414 thousand 1n
2017,
- Repavment of habilites on bank loans by offsetting receivables from a relared party with which
a jomnt activiry 1s carrted our. The offsetting 1n 2017 amounts to BGN 1 984 thousand;
- Sale of an arreraft amounting ro BGN 2 400 thousand, as the transaction balances are settded
by offserung them in 2017

35 Contingent assets and connngent liabilities

As of the date of the preparation of these financial statements, the Cotnpany has a legal dispute n
connection with an sssued \cts for the establishment of a public state receivables for atrport charges
The Company has appealed against the acts so ssued.

During the year other different legal claims were brought agmnst the Company which has no sigmificant
cffect on the financtal statements of the Company.

The management of the Company has determined thar these claims arc insubsrantial and the possibility
of them tncurring expenses upon settlement 15 remote The assessment of the management 13 supported
by the opuon of the legal advisors of the Company.

None of the above mengoned clamms 15 ser out here 1o detad m order 1o prevenr a sepous impact on the
posttion of the Company m the resolunon of dispures.
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Bank guarantees arc tssued from two commercial banks in favour of the Company at the amount of
BGN 400 thousand, EUR 92 thousand as well as letters of credit amounung to USD 999 thousand. The
bank guarantees arc 1ssued to secure Company’s trade payables.

A guarantee contract o favour of Bulgana Air ADD 15 signed by Chimimport A and Bulgarian airways
E A as guarantors for the receivables from CCB AD 10 amount of BGN 3 000 thousand under a credut
agreement overdraft with delivery of an authorized lumit up to BGN 6 000 thousand.

In favour of Bulgarna J\ir AD there 15 a corporate guarantee agreement signed by Chimmmport AD for
the amount of BGN 6 55 mulhon to sccure a commercial bank claim under a credit agreement as of 14
Oxctober 2018

36 Caregorics of financial assets and labilities

The carrving amounts presented in the statement of financial posinon relate to the following categones
of fimancial assets and habilies

2018 2017
BGIN?’000 BGN?000
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost
‘I'rade and other recervables 90 163 -
Cash and cash cquavalents 15111 -
Financial assets measured at fait value through other
comprehensive income
Fguty mstruments 18 000 -
123 279 -
Financial assets (until 31 December 2017}
Financial assets
Fuanctal assets avaitable for sale - 18 000
Loans and receivables, incl.
Trade and other recervables - 101 768
Casl and cash cquivalents - 15 241
- 135 009
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost 2018 2017

BGIN’000 BGN’000
Long-term liabilities

Trade and other habilines 8114 32783
Borrowings 475 810
8 589 33593

Short-term liabilities
Trade and other labilioes 94 751 81671
Borrowings 11 860 8621
106 611 90 292

See note 4 14 and note +.15 about informaton related to the accounung policy for cach category financial
mstruments  Methods which are used for assessment of fair value of financial assets and labilities



o
i

BULGARTA ATR ADD
Financial Statements
31 December 2018

measured ar fair value are presented 1n note 38 1. Desenpnion of the nisk management objectives and

policies of the Company related to the financial instruments 1s presented 1n note 37.

37 Finaugcial mstrument risks

Risk management objectives and policies

The Company 15 exposed to vartous risks n relation to financial mstruments, represented by categones
assets and habidites are summanzed m Note 36. The mam tvpes of nisks are market nsk, credit nsk and
liquichity risk.

The Compam's sk management 1s coordinated ar 1ts headquarters, m close co-operation with the Board
of directors, and focuses on actrvely securmng the Company's short o medium-term cash flows by
minumizmg the exposure to nsks of financal markets. The Company 1s not engaged 1n the trading of
financial asscts for speculative purposes nor does 1€ 1S5Ue OPLOTS.

The Company 15 exposed 1o market nsk through s use of fimancial instruments and specifically o
cuttency sk, mrerest rate rsk and certain other poce nsks, which result from both 1ts operaung and
NVEesung aciivites

371 Matket risk analvss

3701 Foreign currency 1ish
Exposures to curtency exchange rates ansce from the Company's overseas sales and purchases, which are
primarily denomnated i US-Dollars and Brivsh Pounds.

The Company has shorr-term trade payables, pavables to related parties and other Iabiiies tin USTD and
GBP, which are connected 10 the anhne's operavons {(anding fees, en-route charges, payments under
operatng leases for leased aircraft repait obligations engines and spare parts, etc } Thesc obligations are
carried at amortzed cost

The Company has short-term trade recetvables and other recetvables in USD and i GBP, which are
related to the arlne’s operations {ucket sales from offices abroad and others) Those receivables are
classified as loans and recevables

To mungate the Company's exposure to foreign currency risk, non-BGXN cash flows are monttored. The
Company applies separate procedures for monitoring the risk management for short-term (up t 6
months) cash flows m forelgn currency Where the amounts to be paid and recerved m a speafic currency
are expected o largely offset one another, no further hedging acovity 15 undertaken. Investments 1n
forward contracts which are short-term (up to 1 month) are possible

Foreign currency denotmunaced financial assets and lhabihites, translated into BGIN as ar the date of the
financial statement ace as follows:
Short-term exposute

UsD GBP
31 December 2018 BGN*000 BGN‘000
Financial assets 19 329 I 210
Financial habihues {16 233) (351
Total exposure o 3096 o 859
31 December 2017
Financial asscts 6376 1 3066
Financat labilities (17 60y (385)

Total exposure (11 224) 981
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Presented 1n the tables below show the senstuvity of annual net financial result after tax and equaty
possible change m exchange rates of the Bulganan lev against the following currencies

o  USD(+/-50%) (2017 +/- 5 %)

o GBD(+/-1.8%0) (2017 +/-2 1)

I other parametess are constdered to be constant These percentages have been determined based on

averaged exchange rates for the previous 12 months.

If the BGN had apprecated aganst the USID by 50 %% (2017 4.5 *%) and GBP by 18 % (2017 21 %),
respeeuvely, then this would have had the following impact:

____Effect over the net financial result for the year

USD GBP Total

BGIN000 BGN*000 BGN000

31 December 2018 155 15 170
31 Deecember 2017 {505) 21 (484

Tf the BGN had deprectated agamst the USID by 5.0 % (2007 4.5 o) and GBP by 1 8 %% (2017 21 %),
respectively, then this would have had the following impact

Effect over the net financial result for the year

USD GBP Total

BGN*000 BGN*000 BGN'000

31 December 2018 (155) (15) (176)
31 December 2017 505 210 48+

Lxposures to foreign exchange rares vary dunng the vear depending on the volume of overscas
transactions Thgher sensitnaey of the aet financial result after tax from currency rate in 2018 compared
10 2017 15 due to the significant volaahity of the GBP in 2018.

37.1.2  interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2018, the Company 1s exposed to the risk of changing market interest rates on its
variable-rate bank loans Al other financial assets and liabilides of the Company have fixed mterest rates.

\s ar 31 December 2018, the Company received loans from two commercial banks, wluch have a floating

mterest rate. The mterest rate on some of the loans mcludes a vanable component based on 3A[
FURIBOR and a fixed spread The interest rate on other loans includes a vanable component that 1
determined based on a basis mterest rate (BIR), plus a fixed spread for sk The table below shows the
senstaviey of the annual ner financial result after raxes and equuty 1o the likely change 1 mnterest rate on
floaung rate loans basced on 3M EURIBOR of +/-10.53"0 on onc of the loans and the sensiuvity to the
basts interest rate of the Bank, which is formed as a sum of BIRs set by the BNB and 120 EURTBOR
totalling +/- 1 Y5% These changes are considered to be possible based on observations of current
market condinons Al other parameters are accepted as constant
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Net financial result of the Company
Increase in interest Decrease in interest

rates rates
BGN <000 BGN 000
31 December 2018
Debrin BGN 3N EURIBOR 1153 %0) (44) 44
Debtin BGN (BIR plus 12M EUVRIBOR 1 95 %) {16) 46
Equity
Increase in interest Dectease in interest
rates rates
BGN 000 BGN <000
31 December 2018
Debt in BGN (3M FURTBOR (153 ) (+4) 44
Debtm BGN (BIR plus 120 FURIBOR 1 93 ©0) (46) 46

3785  Other prece nisk

The Company 15 alse exposcd 1o other price nisks 10 connection with the supply of aviauon fucl whose
price 1 determined and influcnced by global factors that the airthne 1s unable to mnfluence An eventual
increase 10 the price of kerosene would have a neganve umpact on the profitability of the arine and the
outtlow of cash onaly on scheduled flights, as the charter contracts provided for a prce correction if the
avtanion tuel deviation exceeds 3-5%0

37.2 Creditnisk

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk 1s lumuted to the carrving amount of financial assets
recogmzed at the teporting date, as summanyzed below-
2018 2017
BGN“000 BGN*000
Classes of financial assets — carrying amounts
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost

Related parties recervables 21 071 -
Trade recervables 10 759 -
Orther recervables 58 338 -
Cash and cash equivalents 15111 -

Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Equury instraments 18 00O -
123 279 -

Classes of financial assets — cartying amounts
Financial assets available for sale

Eyquuty mvestments - 8 000
Loans and receivables

Redated parties recervables - 20 320
Trade recervables - 10 873
Other recervables - 70 575
Cash and cash equivalents - 15 241

- 135 009
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The Company conunuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparues, identified etther
wmdividually or by group, and incorporates this information into 1ts credit nisk controls Where available
at reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or reports on customers and other counterparties are
obtamned and used. The Company's poliey 1s to deal only with creditworthy counterparties. In additon, a
significant proportion of sales revenues are recetved mn advance 1 order to reduce credit nsk

The Company's management considers that all the above financial assets that are not impaired or past
due for each of the reporting dates under review, are of good credit quality, mcluding those that are past
duc

In respect to trade and related party receivables, the Company 1s not exposed to any significant credit
nsk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having sumlar charactertstic,
Trade recervables constst of a large number of clients in varous industries and geographucal areas. Based
on lustancal performance, the management considers the credit quality of trade recervables that are not
overdue, are good

Syrnficant credit nisk has been wdentified in regard to some of the other recetvables of the Company,
representing legal clams of tird paraes The Company has taken legal and other actions regarding the
collection of the recervables and believes that the recervables are hkely to be realized

Credit risk n respect of cash and cash equivalents is conswdered neghgible, since the counterparties are
reputable banks

\s at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 financial assets avatlable as collateral for bank loans are
pledge of recervables under aircraft operating lease agreements (wet lease) and contracts for sale of tickets.

Anunpatrment loss 1s not recogrired in regard to the investment 1 shares, measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income

The earrying amounts, wrtten above, represent the maximuim level of credit risk in regard to these
financial assets.

373 Laguidiy nisk
The Company manages 1ts hqudity needs by monttoring scheduled debt servicing payments for Tong-
term financial iabilives as well as cash inflows and outflows due m day-to-day busmess. Liquidity needs
ate momtored m varous time bands, on a day-to-dav and week-to-week basis, as well as on the basis of
a rolling 30-day projection. Long-term liquidity needs for a 180-day and a 360-day lookout penod are
identified monthly

s at 31 December Company’s habihites have contractual matunties which are summanzed below

31 December 2018

Short-term Long-term

Within 1 year 1to 5 years

BGN“000 BGN*“000

Trade and bank loans 11 860 475
Trade payalsles 64 189 3114
Related partes Labiities 28734 -
Orther liabilines 1 828 -

106 611 8 589
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31 December 2017

Short-term Long-term

Within 1 year 1to 5 years

BGN“000 BGN*000

I'rade and bank loans 8 621 810
Trade payables 55 880 32783
Related parties liabilities 23782 -
Other liabilites 2009 -
90 292 33593

The amounts, reported m chis analysis of the contracrual marturiues are the undiscounced cash flows on
the contracts, which may ciffer from the carrving values of the labilities at the reporting date

358 PFarvaloe measurement
380 Farvalue measngement of financial instrumenrs

Set owr below 1s a compansen of the carrving amounts and fair values of financial mstruments as at the
end of the presented reporong pertods:

Financial assets 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Fair value Carrying Fair value  Carrying

amount amount

BGIN“000 BGN“000 BGN'000 BGN‘000

Financial assets available for sale:

Shares 18 000 18 000 18 000 18 000
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss:

Publicly traded shares - - 1020 1 020
Loans and receivables

Trade and other recervables 101 771 101 771 84 513 84 513
Cash and cash equivalents 15 241 15241 17330 17330
135 012 135 012 120 863 120 863

Financial liabilities 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Fair value Carrying Fairvalue Carrying

amount amount

BGN060 BGN“000 BGN000 BGN*000

Financial liabilities measured at
amortized cost:

Borrowings 9431 9 431 5 506 5 506
T'tade and other payables 114 454 114 454 156 461 156 461
123 885 123 885 161 967 161 967

The Company reports one type of finanaial assers measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income that represent nvestments 1 equity tnstruments of a foreygn company. For the purpose of far
value disclosure, financial assers are grouped 1n three levels i accordance with the fair value hierarchy
based on the significance of wputs used m measuring the farr value of the financial assets and habilities,
The fatr value hicrarchy has the following levels

- Level L quoted prices (unadjusted) m active markets for idenacal assets or labdities,
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- Tevel 2 mputs othet than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or hability, etther directly (1 e. as prices) or indirectly (Le. denved trom pnees), and

- level 3 mputs for the asset or liabﬂlt‘_\' that are not based on observable market data
{unobservable inputs)

The level within which the financial asset or liability 15 classified 15 determuned based on the lowest level
of sipmificant input to the farr value measurement

The 1nvestment i cquity istruments is classified in level 3 Turing the reporting penod there were no
transfer between | and 2

31 December 2018 Level 3
BGIN*000

Financial assets

Shares that are nor traded on a stock exchange 18 Lo

Total 18 000

There have been no wransfers berween levels 1 and 2 1 the reporung pertods.

Measurement of fair value
The valuanon methods and techiques used i the determinatton of fair value have not changed

C(n‘np:n‘cd tes the preyvious 1’(,‘}')()1"['111};; Pf.‘ﬁ()dA

For instruments that are not traded on the stock exchange, the fair value measurement 15 based on
incoming formauon about the particular Company. This informadoen 1s not based on observed market
data and 1s adjusted for spectfic factors. The valuation 1s based on the net assets of the Company m which
it 15 mnvested, taking mto account other indicators that could have an unpact on the mnstrument's credit
risk - the financial condition of the 1ssuer, the economic envirenment 1n which the sssuer operates, and
athers.

No gain o1 loss assoctated with this investiaent 1s recogiuzed for the peniod.

38,2 Tiair value measurement of non-financial mstruments

Non-financial assets of the Company measured at farr value are classified as wvestment property
classified m T.evel 3 of the fair value hierarchy in which mputs for the asset 1s not based on observable
market data. The fair value of the mvestment properev as at 31 December approximate BGN 406
thousand

Fair value of the Company's property assers ts estumated on apprasals performed by independent,
professtonally-qualified property valuators and subsequent confirmation Fair value 15 based on the
meome approach When assessing the butldings specific factors such as size, locaton, current usc, the
uniquencss of the structure and the absence of analogue, are taken 1nto account

Signiticant unobservable data 1s related o the adjustment for the Company's specific assets The extent
and duection of this adjusment depends on the numbet and charactenistics of observed maiket
transactions with stmilar properties cthat were used for the purposes of the valuadon. Although these data
are subjectrve asscssment, management considers that the final assessment would not be sigmificantly
affected by other possible assumptions

Mthough these data are subjecuve, the management believes that the final assessment would not be
significanth influenced by other possible assumptions
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Tnformauon fot reconcibanon between the beginmng and cnding balances of non-financial assets (o
Tevel 318 presented in Note 7 to the financial statements

39 Caputal manayement polivies and procedures

The Company's capital management objectives are
e tocosure the Company's abihity to continue as a going concern, and
e to provide an adequate return to the shareholder by pricing 1ts services commensurately wath
the level of usk.

The Company monuors capital on the basts of the correlation berween adjusted capital and net debt
The Company determines the adjusted capital based on the carryving amount of equity and subordinated
debr m the financial statement. The Company does not account for cash flow hedges recogmzed 1n

equin

Subordinated debt includes unsecured loans or loans that have a subsequent mortgage or pledge of
Company’s property

Net debt s caleudated ax general debt less the camning amount of cash and cash equivalents

The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to 11 the hght of changes 1n
cconomic condions and the nsk charactenstces of the underlving assets Tn order to matntain or adjust
the caputal structure, the Company may recurn capital to shareholders, 1ssue new shares, or sell assets o

reduce debre

The amount of the correlation for the presented accounung pentods 13 summatized as follows:

2018 2017

BGN‘000 BGN000

Fquity 120 447 127 509
+subordmarced debe 3779 1205
Adjusted capital 129 226 128 714
Debe 128 853 144 513
-Cash and cash equivalents (15 111) (15 241)
Net debt 113 742 129 272
Adjusted capital to net debt 1,14 1,00

4 Postreporung dawe evenes

No adsting or sigmficant non-adjusang events have occurred between the reportng date and the date

of approval by the Board of Directors.
4 Authonratton forissuance of the fimancial statements

Innancial statements as at 31 December 2018 (including comparauve mformanon) are authonzed for
tssuance by the Board of Duectors on 14 March 2019



